Public Document Pack

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk

You are requested to attend a meeting of
the Lake Administration Committee
on Friday, 25 January 2019, at 10.00 a.m.
in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House,
Kendal
Committee Membership
South Lakeland District Council
Robin Ashcroft
Roger Bingham
Matt Brereton (Vice-Chairman)
Andrew Butcher
Gill Gardner
Eamonn Hennessy
John Holmes
Kevin Holmes
Vicky Hughes
Andrew Jarvis
Dyan Jones
Eric Morrell
Doug Rathbone
Vivienne Rees
David Williams (Chairman)
Mark Wilson

Brian Hewitt

Lakes Parish Council
Leslie Johnson

Philip Thompson

Windermere Town Council
Kathleen Atkinson

Leith Hallatsch

Jennifer Borer

Peter Hamilton

Adrian Legge

Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”.
Wednesday, 16 January 2019
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)
For all enquiries, please contact:Committee Administrator:
Committee Services
Telephone:
01539 733333
e-mail:
committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I

1

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2

MINUTES

5 - 10

To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the
meeting of the Committee held on 5 October 2018 (copy attached).

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this
Agenda.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct,
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s
Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as
any other registrable or other interests.
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

4

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be
considered in the presence of the press and public.

5

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the
meeting. Information on how to make the application can be obtained by
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333.
(1)

Questions and Representations
To receive any questions or representations which have been received
from members of the public.

(2)

Deputations and Petitions
To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from
members of the public.

6

PROGRESS REPORT
To consider an update on progress relating to decisions made at previous
meetings of the Committee, as at 16 January 2019.

11 - 12

7

2019/20 TO 2023/24 DRAFT BUDGET

13 - 18

To consider the latest draft budget estimates for Lake Windermere for 2019/20
to 2023/24.

8

LAKE WINDERMERE SERVICE SURVEY FULL ANALYSIS REPORT 2018

19 - 74

To consider the Lake Windermere Service Survey Full Analysis Report 2018.

9

WINDERMERE LAKE WARDENS AND RANGERS ANNUAL REPORT
2017/18

75 - 102

To consider the Windermere Lake Wardens and Rangers Annual Report
2017/18.

10

ENCROACHMENT APPLICATION TO INSTALL A NEW WOODEN JETTY AT
WINSTERLEA GHYLL HEAD WINDERMERE

103 - 118

To consider an encroachment application to install a new wooden jetty at
Winsterlea, Ghyll Head, Windermere.

11

ENCROACHMENT
APPLICATION
TO
REPLACE
AN
EXISTING
BOATHOUSE WITH A NEW BOATHOUSE AND NEW JETTY, HILL OF
OAKS, WINDERMERE

119 - 146

To consider an encroachment application to replace an existing boathouse with
a new boathouse and jetty at Hill of Oaks, Windermere.

12

WINDERMERE FERRY ADVISORY GROUP
To consider representations to Cumbria County Council on the introduction of a
Windermere Ferry Advisory Group.

PART II
Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)

13

UPDATE ON COMMERCIAL LEASES AND ANNUAL ENCROACHMENTS
- Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information)
- Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings.
To update Members on commercial leases and annual encroachments.

147 - 154

This page is intentionally left blank

Item No.2
5
05.10.2018

Lake Administration Committee
LAKE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Lake Administration Committee held in the
District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Friday, 5 October 2018, at
10.00 a.m.
Present
Councillors
David Williams (Chairman)
Matt Brereton (Vice-Chairman)
Robin Ashcroft
Roger Bingham
Andrew Butcher
Gill Gardner

Eamonn Hennessy
John Holmes
Vicky Hughes
Dyan Jones

Eric Morrell
Doug Rathbone
Mark Wilson

Representing Lakes Parish Council
Brian Hewitt

Philip Thompson
Representing Windermere Town Council

Jennifer Borer

Leith Hallatsch

Peter Hamilton

Apologies for absence were received from District Councillors Kevin Holmes,
Andrew Jarvis and Vivienne Rees, Lakes Parish Councillor Leslie Johnson and
Windermere Town Councillors Kathleen Atkinson and Adrian Legge.
Officers
Inge Booth
Frankie Flannigan
Julia Krier
Debbie Storr

LA/14

Senior Committee Services Officer
Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer
Solicitor (Property and Contracts)
Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)

MINUTES
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of
the meeting of the Committee held on 29 June 2018.

LA/15

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

LA/16

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
RESOLVED – That, should discussion be necessary, the item in Part II of the Agenda be
dealt with following the exclusion of the press and public.

Page 5

6
05.10.2018

LA/17

Lake Administration Committee

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions
have been received in respect of this meeting.

LA/18

PROGRESS REPORT
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented a report updating
Members on progress made on decisions taken at previous meetings of the Committee, as
follows:LA/21 (5 October 2012) – Lake User Forum Engagement Protocol – The Director of Policy
and Resources (Monitoring Officer) indicated that this item could now be removed, as it had
been replaced by engagement through the officer delivery groups working on the actions
within the Windermere Lake Action Plan, which formed part of the second item on the
progress report.
LA/21 (6 October 2017) – Windermere Lake Action Plan 2017-2022 – The Director of Policy
and Resources (Monitoring Officer) reported that the second meeting of the delivery group
had taken place on 21 September 2018. The purpose of the delivery group was to deliver
on the breakthrough actions within the Plan. A positive start had been made, with delivery
groups having been set up. The next meeting was due to take place in December, and a
report would be presented to the Lake Administration Committee in the new year.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

LA/19

LAKE WINDERMERE FEES AND CHARGES 2019/20
The Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer presented a report including proposals for
Fees and Charges relating to Windermere Lake and the Lake Wardens Services from
1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.
The fees covered four distinct areas, namely:




permanent and holiday moorings;
yearly renewed encroachments (the commercial term leases were outside the scope of
the Fees and Charges);
ancillary services (including slipway, training, dinghy and winter storage); and
marina berths.

The proposals sought to limit the increase in fees and charges whilst sustaining the Lake
Income, and met the Medium Term Financial Plan requirements of a 2% rise where
practicable.
RESOLVED – That the Fees and Charges, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report, be
approved.

LA/20

PROPOSAL TO OFFER EXTENDED RESIDENTIAL ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENTS
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) reported that the Council offered
a number of different encroachment agreements, namely:



annual residential;
annual commercial; and
longer term commercial.

Page 6

7
05.10.2018

Lake Administration Committee

Currently, annual residential encroachment agreements were granted for a period of one
year, but continued on a rolling yearly basis, taking the form of a licence agreement, which
provided very little security to the customer. It was considered that there may be some
benefit in granting longer-term agreements, in the form of a lease, to customers for
residential encroachments. The proposal was to offer a lease agreement for a period of up
to nine years, in line with Lambert Smith Hampton’s current delegations. Rent reviews
would follow the same format as currently, with the Lake Administration Committee
approving the charges for each financial year as part of the fees and charges process.
Subject to approval, the Council would offer the new agreements, with effect from 1 April
2019. In offering a lease, it was proposed that the relationship between Council and
customer would take the basis of a formal landlord/tenant relationship, enabling a better
understanding of each party’s obligations.
In response to queries raised, the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) and
the Solicitor (Property and Contacts) explained that the proposal related only to residential
encroachments. Although the proposal was to offer agreements for a term of up to nine
years, the period could be less, with break clauses also being negotiated within the
agreements, as necessary. Appropriate provisions would be included in the agreements to
address the possibility of a change in property ownership during the term of the agreement.
RESOLVED – That
(1)
the proposal to offer residential encroachment agreements to customers for a term
of up to nine years, subject to customers having an up-to-date Lake encroachment account,
be approved; and
(2)
Lambert Smith Hampton be delegated authority to agree the granting of such
agreement.

LA/21

JETTY, SLIPWAY AND BOATHOUSE ALTERATIONS CALGARTH HALL BOATHOUSE,
WINDERMERE
Members had been provided with a revised copy of Recommendation 2.1.1 c which now
read, “removal and replacement of the existing slipway 2.5m south of its current location
and to cover an area of 2.7m squared.”
The Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer reported on an application for permission
to replace the two existing jetties, relocate the slipway and add a balcony to the
encroachment at Calgarth Hall. Attention was drawn to the fact that the Lake District
National Park Authority had already approved an application to demolish the existing
boathouse and to construct a new boathouse to include both jetties; the boathouse was
located above the Council’s registered title.
Details of the application under consideration were provided. It was also pointed out that
an application for dredging had been received covering only the internal area of the
boathouse.

Page 7

8
05.10.2018

Lake Administration Committee

RESOLVED – That
(1)
the Director People and Places be delegated authority to grant permission, subject
to the completion of a revised Encroachment Agreement, for the following:(a)

replacement of two existing wooden jetties;

(b)

installation of a glass balustrade balcony; and

(c)
removal and replacement of the existing slipway 2.5m south of its current
location and to cover an area of 2.7m squared; and
(2)
the intention of the applicant to undertake dredging to the internal area of the
boathouse be noted.

LA/22

APPLICATION TO AMEND ENCROACHMENT STATUS - WATERSEDGE, STORRS
PARK, WINDERMERE
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented an application for an
alteration in the charging rate relating to the Boathouse, Watersedge, Storrs Park,
Windermere, from a commercial charging basis to a residential basis. The premise of the
application was that the property had been transferred into a family trust for inheritance tax
purposes but was being used, and always had been used, as family property.
Appendix 2 to the report was the guidance that had been approved by the Lake
Administration Committee in April 2018. The report also drew attention to the fact that, for
Council Tax purposes, the property was classified as being a small business. In addition,
the applicant was of the opinion that the charging had been on a commercial basis since
the Trust had been created in 2013. It was pointed out, however, that it was only in April
2018 that a decision had been made by the Committee to allow those who held property in
trust but used it for residential purposes to make an application for consideration by the
Committee for the commercial encroachment to be treated as a residential encroachment.
It was noted that, in accordance with the guidance approved by the Committee in April
2018, any decision to change the charging status to residential would take effect from the
first day of the month following the decision having been made.
Note – During consideration of the item, Members voted to move into Part II to
discuss Appendix 1 to the report which contained a copy of the application and
supporting documents.

LA/23

PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation)
Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.

Page 8

9
05.10.2018

LA/24

Lake Administration Committee

APPLICATION TO AMEND ENCROACHMENT STATUS - WATERSEDGE, STORRS
PARK, WINDERMERE - APPENDIX 1
- Paragraph 2, 3 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including
the authority holding that information)
The Solicitor (Property and Contracts) provided clarification on a query relating to one of the
supporting documents.
Note – Following this discussion, Members voted to move back into Part I.

LA/25

RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting.

LA/26

APPLICATION TO AMEND ENCROACHMENT STATUS - WATERSEDGE, STORRS
PARK, WINDERMERE
RESOLVED – That the application to alter the charging rate relating to the Boathouse,
Watersedge, Storrs Park, Windermere, from a commercial charging basis to a residential
basis be granted.

The meeting ended at 10.33 a.m.

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

LAKE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
PROGRESS REPORT: as at 16 January 2019
Minute
no.
LA/21

Report Title
Windermere
Lake Action
Plan 20172022

Committee
Date
6 October
2017

Progress

Due date



Ongoing

The Officer Delivery group met again in December
to progress the project work, and a Members’
Steering Group meeting is being arranged for
February.

Officer

David
Sykes / Jim
Maguire

Page 11

Item No.6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Item No.7
South Lakeland District Council
Lake Administration Committee
Friday, 25 January 2019

2019/20 to 2023/24 Draft Budget
Portfolio:

Cllr Andrew Jarvis - Finance Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director Resources (Section 151
Officer)

Report Author:

Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager

Wards:

Ambleside & Grasmere; Bowness & Levens; Windermere

Forward Plan:

Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan
as published on 2 October 2018

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

It is expected that the budgets for Lake Windermere will be approved by full Council
on 26 February 2019, as part of the overall 2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget. This report
gives Lake Administration Committee the opportunity to consider the funding
available to deliver their services.
Recommendation

2.0
2.1

It is recommended that Lake Administration Committee note the latest draft
estimates.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Lake Administration Committee considered proposals for Fees and Charges relating
to Windermere Lake and the Lake Wardens services from 1 April 2019 to 31 March
2020 on 5 October 2018.

3.2

The latest draft revenue budgets for 2019/20 to 2023/24 are attached at Appendix 1.
These will form part of the overall Draft Revenue Budget due to be presented to
Council for consideration and approval on the 26 February 2019.

3.3.

The Draft Budget Report considered by Council on the 18 December 2018 showed a
balanced position corporately for 2019/20. The detailed budget relating to Lake
Windermere, presented in Appendix 1, represents no change in the level of service
provision from 2018/19. The estimates have changed year on year, the main reasons
being:


Incremental progression on salary costs and the pay award for 2019/20;



Unavoidable inflation on costs (e.g. premises costs);



Review of base expenditure for cost reductions;



Income from fees and charges in line with the fees agreed on 5 October
2018.

Page 13

4.0

Consultation

4.1

The Draft Budget has been considered by Cabinet on 28 November 2018 and
Council on 18 December 2018. It will also be considered by Licensing Committee
and Planning Committee who will receive and consider the elements of the draft
Budget Report which are relevant to them. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee
will consider the 18 December Council first draft Budget Report at its January 2019
meeting.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

This overall Draft Budget presents options in relation to potential budget pressures
and savings, new capital programme bids, one off revenue growth bids and fees and
charges. The proposals together aim to meet the Council’s statutory duty to set a
balanced Budget for 2019/20. No alternative options are proposed in this report.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

This report sets out the draft Budget to enable the consideration of how the Council’s
priorities will be delivered. Setting a sound framework for budget preparation assists
in the delivery of all corporate outcomes. This strategy has been developed within the
context of the MTFP.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

The draft Budget aims to safeguard the Council’s financial position and ensure a
balanced budget for 2019/20 and an improved position in the years that follow.

Human Resources
7.2

This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council; individual savings and
growth proposals may have direct staffing implications.

Legal
7.3

This report has no direct legal implications at this stage but individual proposals
resulting from this report may have direct legal implications.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which will be subject
to further consultation. Specific issues that require HSEEIAs will be addressed within
the final budget proposals presented to Council 26 February 2019.

Equality and Diversity
7.6

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix *) / Yes
(not attached as appendix) / No

7.7

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which will be subject
to further consultation. Specific issues that require EIAs will be addressed within the
final budget proposals presented to Council 26 February 2019.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Failure to create a balanced and
sustainable budget by February

Includes: inability to deliver
corporate priorities,

Identification of sound
budget guidelines in and

Page 14

Risk

Consequence

Controls required

2019

inappropriate spending,
and inappropriate
reductions in services.

agreed strategy reduces
the risk of an unaffordable
budget and/or precipitate
budget reductions.

Revenue budget and Capital
Programme may not be
integrated and aligned with
Council Plan.

Resources not directed to
achieving corporate
outcomes, leading to
inappropriate spending.

Monitoring of progress
against the budget
timetable reduces the
need for last-minute
budget adjustments.
Both the revenue budget
and the Capital
Programme are now
embedded in the
corporate planning cycle.
All revenue budgets and
capital programme
schemes are linked to
Council plan priorities

Contact Officers
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793147
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Draft Budget 2019/20 – 2023/24

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Medium Term Financial Plan
approved Council 24 July 2018
2019/20 to 2023/24 Draft Budget,
Council 18 December 2018

https://tinyurl.com/ya988w5b
https://tinyurl.com/y9uhd7j2

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
10/1/2019
10/1/2019
10/1/2019
10/1/2019

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)

Date sent
10/1/2019
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 15

Circulated to
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
28/11/2018
18/12/2018

Page 16

Appendix 1
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the detailed service budgets
2018/19
Approved
£000

2018/19
Current
£000

2019/20
£000

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

Neighbourhood Services
Lake Windermere

223.6
96.8
21.1
22.5
1.3
328.0

223.6
131.2
21.1
22.5
1.3
328.0

693.3

727.7

-1,425.5
-6.0

-1,425.5
-6.0

-1,431.5

-1,431.5

93.4

93.4

93.4

93.4

-644.8

-610.4

Direct Expenditure
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Bought-in Services
Central Support Services

Income
Customer Receipts
Internal recharges

Capital Charges
Capital Charges/REFCUS

Net Expenditure

248.8
97.1
21.6
22.6
0.6
314.6

254.2
98.3
21.6
22.6
0.6
314.6

259.6
99.5
21.7
22.6
0.6
314.6

265.2
100.7
21.7
22.6
0.6
314.6

270.9
100.7
21.7
22.6
0.6
314.6

705.3

711.9

718.6

725.4

731.1

-1,459.5
-6.2

-1,492.6
-6.2

-1,518.6
-6.2

-1,544.2
-6.2

-1,544.2
-6.2

-1,465.7

-1,498.8

-1,524.8

-1,550.4

-1,550.4

85.5

85.5

85.5

66.5

63.4

85.5

85.5

85.5

66.5

63.4

-674.9

-701.4

-720.7

-758.5

-755.9

Culture and Wellbeing
Warden Service of Lake Windermere. Management of Moorings and Encroachments. Provision of Slipway and General
Lake Service (Rescues etc.)

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18

Item No.8
South Lakeland District Council
Lake Administration Committee
Friday, 25 January 2019

Lake Windermere Service Survey Full Analysis
Report 2018
Portfolio:

Not Applicable

Report from:

Director People and Places

Report Author:

Frankie Flannigan – Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer

Wards:

Not Applicable

Forward Plan:

Not Applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

Members are asked to note the report and details of the survey

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the committee:(1)

Note the report

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

This survey was carried out jointly by South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) as
owners of the lake bed, providers of public slipways and swinging moorings, and the
Lake District National Park Authority (LDNPA) as they are responsible for the Lake
byelaws.

3.2

The aim of the survey was to gather information on the lake usage and by taking
part, lake users had the opportunity to rate and comment upon the services and
facilities to use. The information will be used to improve both authorities
understanding of the needs of lake users and ensure that services and facilities are
in line with or exceed their expectations where possible.

3.3

The Lake Windermere Service Survey was open to all users of the Lake. There was
an initial press release in the local press to bring the survey to the attention of the
local population. The survey was also posted out to all registered lake mooring
holders and a link was put on both SLDC’s and the LDNPA’s websites. The LDNPA
also distributed the survey to their registered users, and surveys were distributed to
various partners and businesses around the lake (marinas, Ferry Nab etc.) Finally
another press release was put out prior to the survey closing.

3.4

The information gathered will assist in our current and future planning and strategy.
This will enable the council and its partners to consult and engage with lake users on
an appropriate action plan. The new Windermere Lake Action Plan 2017-22 would be

Page 19

the most appropriate document to deal with the recommendations that have been
highlighted within the survey.
3.5

There were 274 complete useable responses to the consultation.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Consultation has taken place with the LDNPA Park Management Ranger,

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

The results will support the breakthrough actions within the Windermere Lake Action
Plan

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Not Applicable

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

Not Applicable

Human Resources
7.2

There are no staff implications

Legal
7.3

Not Applicable

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? Not applicable

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The
report provides survey information only.

7.6

Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: not applicable

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Not applicable

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The
report provides survey information only.

7.9

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: Not applicable

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

None Identified
Contact Officers
Report Author – Frankie Flannigan, Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer, Phone
01539796165, f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk

Page 20

Appendices Attached to this Report

Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Copy Of Lake user survey 2018

2

Copy of Lake Windermere service survey report 2018

3

Copy of Lake Windermere 2014/2018 comparison 2018

4

Current Actions

Background Documents Available
As Appendixes
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
30/11/18
30/11/18
30/11/18
20/12/18

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
30/11/18
N/A
30/11/18
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

APPENDIX 1

Lake Windermere Services- Survey 2018

This survey is being carried out by South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) as owners of the lake bed,
providers of public slipways and swinging moorings with the Lake District National Park Authority
(LDNPA) who has responsibility for the lake byelaws.
The aim of the survey is to gather information on lake usage and is completed every four years.
By taking part, lake users have the opportunity to rate and comment on the services and facilities. The
information will be used to improve understanding of the needs of service users and inform SLDC and
LDNPA’s decision making.

Your views are important so please complete the survey online at;
www.southlakeland.gov.uk/lake-survey
If you have any queries, would like to request additional copies or would like help taking part please contact
SLDC on: 01539 733333 or email lake.wardens@southlakeland.gov.uk

Paper copies can be obtained and returned in the following locations;
The Lake Warden’s Office
Ferry Nab
Bowness-on-Windermere
LA23 3BF

South Lakeland House
Lowther Street
Kendal
LA9 4DQ

This survey will close on 31st August 2018

Page 23

APPENDIX 1

Your use of the Lake and SLDC facilities
Q1

What are your main activities around the lake? Tick ONE on each line

Every
Day

2-3 Times a
Around
week
once a week

Once or
Twice a
month

Less Often

Never

Swimming
Walking
Fishing
Cycling
Boating, sailing, power
boating, jet skiing,
kayaking, paddle
boarding
Other, please state

Q2

How often have you used the following facilities over the last year? Tick ONE on each line
Every
Day

2-3 Times a
Around
week
once a week

Public slipway
Car park
Public jetties
Public toilets
Public showers
Trailer/dinghy park
Toilet pump out/disposal
point
Mast hoist
Drinking water
Public washing up area
Advice/help/info service
Short stay public
moorings

Page 24

Once or
Twice a
month

Less Often

Never

APPENDIX 1

Q3

What has been your experience of the facilities provided? Tick ONE on each line
Excellent

Good

Average

Poor

Very poor

Public slipway
Car park
Public jetties
Public toilets
Public showers
Trailer/dinghy park
Toilet pump out/disposal
point
Mast hoist
Drinking water
Public washing up area
Advice/help/info service
Short stay public
moorings

Q4

If we install any new public jetties, where would you like to see them? Please comment;

Q5

Would you like more short stay public moorings provided? Tick one only;
Yes

Q6

No

Don’t know

If you use a vessel, what type do you use? Tick ONE only

Sailing boat

Rowing boat

Dinghy

Canoe/Kayak

Page 25

Powerboat

Motorcruiser

APPENDIX 1

Other, please
state

Q7

Do you launch your vessel from a slipway, if so, where? Tick all that apply
Ferry Nab

Waterhead

Other, please state

Q8

Is your vessel kept…? Tick all that apply
On a swinging mooring

On a marina

At home

Other, please state

Q9

Do you wash your boat and equipment between visiting different water courses?
(To prevent the introduction of invasive non-native plants and animals) Tick one only.
Occasionally – Go to

Always

Q10

Q10

Rarely – Go to Q10

Never – Go to Q10

What would help you to do this more often? Please comment

Q11 How would you prefer to pay for your mooring (including dinghy rack, parking permit
and winter storage)? Tick ONE only
Direct debit: in
full

Direct Debit:
installments

By card e.g.
By direct bank
payment slip
payment
Over the phone
provided with
(BACS)
renewal

By post

Have you provided an authorised emergency contact with your mooring application

Q12 pack, in case the Wardens can’t get hold of you?
Yes

No

Page 26

APPENDIX 1
If No, please comment

Safety and rescue
Q13 Do you know who to contact in the event of an emergency on the lake?
Yes, please state

No

Complete Q14 to Q17 ONLY if you have needed rescue or recovery AFTER 2014.
If you have not needed rescue or recovery, skip to Q18.

Q14 Have you contacted any of the following, as a result of an emergency? Tick all that apply
999 – Coastguard

Lake Wardens

Lake Rangers

your boat ever broken free from its mooring or required emergency attention?
Q15 Has
Tick ONE only
Yes

No

If yes, did we provide enough information for you to decide what action to take? Please
comment below
Yes

No

Q16 How do you rate the rescue or recovery service?
Excellent

Good

Average

Page 27

Tick ONE only

Poor

Very poor

APPENDIX 1

Q17 What, if anything, could be better about the rescue and recovery service we provide?
Please state below

Q18 Are you aware of the following safety campaigns?
Swim safe/
Boat safe

Life
Jacket/Buoyancy
aid checks

Kill Cords

Q19 Where do you access lake safety information?
Ferry Nab office

Tick all that apply

Carbon
Monoxide
safety

Swimming tow
floats

Tick all that apply

SLDC website

LDNPA Website

Other, please state

Q20 Please tell us about any safety equipment you have.
Kill Cord

Life Jackets/
Buoyancy aids

Carbon
monoxide
Detector

Tick all that apply

Swimming tow
float

Other, please state

Registration and enforcement

Page 28

Fire blanket/
extinguisher

APPENDIX 1

Q21

How did you register your vessel for the 2018 season? Tick ONE only
By post

Q22

By phone

Online from email
renewal notice

In person at Ferry
Nab

Registration not
applicable

Was your application dealt with promptly?
Yes

No

Q23 Are you aware of the Lake byelaws?
Yes

No

Information on the lake byelaws and user guides are available at the end of this survey.
Do you know how to contact a LDNPA Lake Ranger if you want to report a byelaw

Q24 offence?

Yes

No

Q25 Have you ever been stopped or warned for any byelaw offence?
Yes

No

If yes, did the person who stopped you clearly explain the offence committed?
Yes

No

Did you receive a letter confirming the warning?
Yes

No

Did the warning clearly explain the offence that had been committed?
Yes

No

Q26 How can we improve our lake byelaws management service? Please comment

Page 29

APPENDIX 1

Lake news and your comments
Q27

Have you used any of the following to access information, news and updates about
the lake? Tick ONE on each line
Yes

No

SLDC Website
LDNPA Website
Windermere Lake Wardens on
Facebook
Twitter @lakewardens
Twitter @lakerangers
Other, please state

Q28 Do you have any other comments about the services offered at the lake by SLDC or
LDNPA? Please state below

Page 30

APPENDIX 1

About you
Q29 Are you…?

Tick all that apply

Male

Female

Q30 What was your age on your last birthday?
Under 16

16-25

Q31 What is your postcode?

26-35

Prefer not to say

Tick ONE only

36-50

51-65

66-80

Over 80

Please state below

Privacy
This is an anonymous survey. Following the end of this consultation we shall publish the results. This may
include quotes of comments and generic details about the age, gender and location distribution of consultation
participants.

What will happen as a result of the survey?
The results of the survey will be used to help us improve the service provided by both authorities. It will be
reported to the Lake Administration Committee and on the consultation section of the SLDC website

Page 31

APPENDIX 1

www.southlakeland.gov.uk/lake-survey.
Thank you for taking part.
Information on the lake byelaws and user guides are available at;
http://www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/aboutus/publicationsandplans/byelaws
More information on lake safety can be found here;
http://www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/visiting/thingstodo/water/water-safety
General information about the Lake Warden’s services can be found at;
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/leisure-culture-and-events/windermere-lake/

Page 32

APPENDIX 2

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report
May – August 2018

This report analyses the results from the Lake Windermere Services – User Survey
2018 conducted via a self-completion and online survey carried out between 11 May
and 31 August 2018.

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

1

Page 33

APPENDIX 2

Contents

Introduction .............................................................................................................. 3
Method ...................................................................................................................... 3
Respondents ............................................................................................................ 3
Your use of the Lake and SLDC facilities ............................................................... 4
Vessels and moorings ............................................................................................. 9
Safety and rescue................................................................................................... 13
Registration and enforcement .............................................................................. 17
Lake news and comments ..................................................................................... 20
About you ............................................................................................................... 21

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 34

2

APPENDIX 2

Introduction
The Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018 was carried out by South Lakeland
District Council (SLDC) as owners of the lake bed, providers of public slipways and swinging
moorings with the Lake District National Park Authority (LDNPA) who has responsibility for
the lake byelaws.
The aim of the survey was to gather information on lake usage. By taking part, lake users
were given the opportunity to rate and comment on the services and facilities provided on
and around the lake. The information gathered will be used to improve understanding of the
needs of service users and inform SLDC’s and LDNPA’s decision making.
The results of the survey will be reported to the Lake Administration Committee and
available to view on SLDC’s website.

Method
The Lake Windermere Service Survey was open to all users of the Lake, which included
mooring holders and other visitors who have used the lake for any leisure activity. It was
advertised in the local press and launched in May 2018 at The Windermere Boat Show.
Questionnaires were available for members of the public, and awareness of it communicated
to the boat users and commercial businesses there.
It was also advertised on SLDC’s and the Lake Warden’s Facebook pages, as well as SLDC
twitter pages to open it up to a wider population. The posts were shared each week with a
link to the online survey. The online survey link was also advertised on the home pages of
the SLDC and LDNPA websites to capture web traffic. Paper copies were held in the Lake
Warden’s office, which had a good uptake from customers directly at Ferry Nab. Paper
copies were also held in South Lakeland House for SLDC staff and customers.
A link to the survey online was emailed directly out to user groups around Lake Windermere,
such as the National Trust, boat and swimming groups. LDNPA Rangers and SLDC staff
also shared the survey with customers and interested businesses face to face.
Posters advertising the survey were positioned on business premises around Ferry Nab and
Bowness promenade. It was also displayed in public places such as Cockshott Point and
Windermere Library. Posters were also displayed around council premises at South
Lakeland House and the Town Hall in Kendal. A press release was issued a week before the
survey ended to remind users to complete it as it continued to be shared on social media.

Respondents
There were 274 complete responses to the survey. There was a significantly lower
response rate compared to the 2014 Lake Windermere Service Survey, when the total
responses stood at 529. This must be taken into account when the two surveys are being
compared throughout the report and in appendix 2.

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

3

Page 35

APPENDIX 2

Your use of the Lake and SLDC facilities
Question 1: What are your main activities around the lake?
Boating, sailing, power boating, jet skiing, kayaking and paddle boarding are the most
popular activities on the lake with 30.3% of respondents reporting it as a weekly activity.
Walking was the second most popular activity with 11.7% once a week, followed by
swimming at 7.7% once a week.
There were an additional 25 comments to this question, which can be viewed in full in
Appendix 1.
Boating, sailing, power boating, jet skiing, kayaking,
paddle boarding
Walking
Swimming
Cycling
Fishing
0%

10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Every day

2-3 times a week

Aroud once a week

Less Often

Never

Not Answered

Every
day

2-3 times
a week

Around
once a
week

Once or
twice a
month

Once or twice a month

Less
Often

Never

Not Answered

Boating,
sailing,
power
boating,
jet skiing
kayaking
paddle
boarding

4

1.5%

54 19.7% 83 30.3% 71 25.9% 31 11.1%

18

6.6%

13

4.7%

Walking

5

1.8%

22

8.0%

32 11.7% 76 27.7% 58 21.2%

5

1.8%

76

27.7%

Swimming

1

0.4%

11

4.0%

21

7.7%

32 11.7% 57 20.8%

58

21.2%

94

34.3%

Cycling

0

0%

6

2.2%

13

4.7%

28 10.2% 56 20.4%

71

25.9%

100

36.5%

Fishing

0

0%

1

0.4%

6

2.2%

8

129

49.1%

112

40.9%

2.9%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 36

18

6.6%

4

APPENDIX 2

Question 2: How often have you used the following facilities over the last
year?
The top five facilities used at least once a week are; public jetties (25.2%), car park (24.1%),
public toilets (22.6%), drinking water (15.0%) and the trailer/dinghy park (14.2%).
The least popular are the mast hoist (70.1% never used) and public washing area (66.1%).
Public jetties
Car park
Public toilets
Drinking water
Trailer/dinghy park
short stay public moorings
Public showers
Public slipway
Toilet pump out/disposal point
Public washing up area
Advice/help/info service
Mast hoist
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Every day

2-3 times a week

Aroud once a week

Less Often

Never

Not Answered

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

70%

80%

90%

100%

Once or twice a month

5

Page 37

APPENDIX 2

Every
day

2-3 times
a week

Around
once a
week

Once or
twice a
month

Less Often

Never

Not
Answered

Public jetties

0

0%

21 7.7% 48 17.5% 78 28.5%

58

21.2%

49

17.9% 20

7.3%

Car park

0

0%

26 9.5% 40 14.6% 76 27.7%

71

25.9%

41

15.0% 20

7.3%

Public toilets

1

0.4% 22 8.0% 39 14.2% 62 22.6%

81

29.6%

50

18.3% 19

6.9%

Drinking water

1

0.4% 11 4.0% 29 10.6% 31 11.3%

25

9.1%

138 50.4% 39 14.2%

Trailer/dinghy
park

20 7.3%

8

2.9% 11

4.0%

13

4.7%

22

8.0%

157 57.3% 43 15.7%

short stay
public moorings

0

0%

11 4.0% 24

8.8%

45 16.4%

49

17.9% 109 39.8% 36 13.1%

Public showers

0

0%

10 3.7% 20

7.3%

19

6.9%

24

8.8%

Public slipway

0

0%

9

3.3% 14

5.1%

30 11.0%

74

27.0% 112 40.9% 35 12.8%

Toilet pump
out/disposal
point

0

0%

2

0.7% 13

4.7%

58 21.2%

27

9.9%

139 50.7% 35 12.8%

Public washing
up area

0

0%

3

1.1%

9

3.3%

14

24

8.8%

181 66.1% 43 15.7%

Advice/help/info
service

0

0%

4

1.5%

7

5.6%

31 11.3% 105 38.3%

Mast hoist

0

0%

0

0%

1

0.4%

1

5.1%

0.4%

31

160 58.4% 41 15.0%

89

32.5% 38 13.9%

11.3% 192 70.1% 49 17.9%

When comparing the answers to the same question in the 2014 survey, the public jetties,
toilets and car park were also the most popular facilities then. The mast hoist was also the
least popular (the public washing area was not an option in 2014).

Question 3: What has been your experience of the facilities provided?
When asked about their experience of using the facilities, the five receiving the highest
levels of satisfaction (excellent/good) are; advice/help/info service (44.2%), public slipway
(40.5%), public jetties (40.9%), car park (39.8%), and short stay public moorings (32.1%).
The facility that received the worst feedback was public toilets, with a quarter (25.9%) of
respondents having a poor/very poor experience when using them.
Again, the results to this question were similar in the 2014 survey.

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 38

6

APPENDIX 2

Advice/help/info service
Public slipway
Public jetties
Car park
Short stay public moorings
Drinking water
Toilet pump out/disposal point
Public toilets
Trailer/dinghy park
Public washing up area
Mast hoist
Public showers
0%
Excellent

10%
Good

20%

30%

Average

40%
Poor

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

50%
Very poor

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Not Answered

7

Page 39

APPENDIX 2

Excellent

Good

Average

Poor

Very poor

Not
Answered

Advice/help/inf
o service

5
4

19.7
%

6
7

24.5
%

4
0

14.6
%

2

0.7%

1

0.4%

11
0

40.2
%

Public jetties

2
7

9.9%

8
5

31.0
%

5
9

21.9
%

2
9

10.6
%

9

3.3%

65

23.7
%

Public slipway

4
2

15.3
%

6
9

25.2
%

5
6

20.4
%

8

2.9%

1

0.4%

98

35.8
%

Car park

2
4

8.8%

8
5

31.0
%

9
8

35.8
%

1
6

5.8%

2

0.7%

49

17.9
%

Short stay
public
moorings

2
6

9.5%

6
2

22.6
%

4
8

17.5
%

7

2.6%

8

2.9%

12
3

44.9
%

Drinking water

1
5

5.5%

5
5

20.1
%

5
0

18.3
%

5

1.8%

3

1.1%

14
6

53.3
%

Toilet pump
out/disposal
point

1
0

3.7%

5
7

20.8
%

5
7

20.8
%

4

1.5%

5

1.8%

14
1

51.5
%

Public toilets

8

2.9%

4
5

16.4
%

9
1

33.2
%

4
3

15.7
%

2
8

10.2
%

59

21.5
%

Trailer/dinghy
park

9

3.3%

3
7

13.5
%

5
9

21.5
%

9

3.3%

4

1.5%

15
6

56.9
%

Public
washing up
area

1
0

3.7%

3
2

11.7
%

4
9

17.9
%

5

1.8%

2

0.7%

17
6

64.2
%

Mast hoist

1
1

4.0%

2
3

8.4%

4
6

16.8
%

4

1.5%

4

1.5%

18
6

67.9
%

Public
showers

8

2.9%

2
1

7.7%

5
5

20.1
%

2
0

7.3%

1
5

5.5%

15
5

56.6
%

Question 4: If we install any new public jetties, where would you like to see
them?
Respondents were given the opportunity to recommend where they would like to see new
public jetties installed, with 171 doing so. Waterhead at Ambleside was the most popular
opinion, with 36% of those who gave suggestions recommending this location. Bowness Bay
(18%), Lakeside and the southern shore (both around 12%) were the other most popular
areas recommended for new public jetties.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 40

8

APPENDIX 2
Question 5: Would you like more short stay public mooring buoys provided?
One in two respondents (50%) would like more short stay public mooring buoys provided on
the lake, while just one in ten (11.3%) would not. Just under a third (29.9%) are unsure.
Respondents were also given the opportunity to recommend where they’d like to see more
public moorings, with 116 doing so. As with question 4, Waterhead at Ambleside was the
most popular choice, with other popular areas being; Lakeside, the southern shore, Fellfoot,
Wray Castle and Bowness Bay.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.
Total

Percent

Yes

137

50.0%

No

31

11.3%

Don’t know

82

29.9%

Not Answered

24

8.8%

Vessels and moorings
Question 6: If you use a vessel, what type do you use?
The most popular vessels used on the lake are sailing boats, with two fifths (41.6%) of
respondents using them. There was a similar response rate from users of motorboats
(13.9%), canoe/kayaks (13.5%) and powerboats (12.8%). Sailing boats were also the most
popular vessel used by respondents to the 2014 survey.
Respondents were given the opportunity to state what other types of vessel they use, with
33 doing so. The main theme coming from the comments was that a number of respondents
use multiple vessels on the lake, while other vessels include paddle boards and canoes.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.
Type of vessel

Total

Percent

Sailing boat

114

41.6%

Rowing boat

1

0.4%

Dinghy

11

4.0%

Canoe/Kayak

37

13.5%

Powerboat

35

12.8%

Motorboat

38

13.9%

Not Answered

38

13.9%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

9

Page 41

APPENDIX 2
Question 7: Do you launch your vessel from a slipway, if so, where?
Just over a quarter of respondents (27.0%) launch their vessels from Ferry Nab, with just
5.5% launching from Waterhead slipway. The percentage launching from Ferry Nab is down
significantly when compared to the results from the 2014 survey, when 52% of respondents
launched from this slipway.
Respondents were able to state other areas they launch their vessels from, with 89 doing so.
Fell Foot was the other most popular area from where respondents launch their vessels, with
the other main launching areas being Windermere Aquatics and private launches.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.
Total

Percent

Ferry Nab

74

27.0%

Waterhead

15

5.5%

Not Answered (Inc.
elsewhere)

194

70.8%

Question 8: Is your vessel kept…?
The majority of respondent’s vessels are kept on a marina (30.3%), with just under a quarter
(22.3%) keeping theirs on a swinging mooring and one in five (19.7%) keeping theirs at
home. When comparing the results to the 2014 survey, the percentage of responses from
lake users keeping their vessels on a swinging mooring has reduced from 45.0%.
Respondents were able to state other places that there vessels are kept, with 50 doing so.
Private boating clubs/boathouses etc. and Fell Foot were the other most popular areas that
vessels are kept.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.
Total

Percent

On a swinging mooring

61

22.3%

On a marina

83

30.3%

At home

54

19.7%

Not Answered (Inc.
elsewhere)

78

28.5%

Question 9: Do you wash your boat and equipment between visiting different
water courses? (To prevent the introduction of invasive non-native plants and
animals)
The majority of respondents did not answer this question. It is likely that many of these do
not move their boat away from the lake so this question is not applicable to them.

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 42

10

APPENDIX 2
However, just under a third (31.8%) said that they always wash their boat and equipment
between visiting different water course, with 6.9% doing so occasionally and 3.3% rarely
doing so. On the other hand, a quarter (24.5%) said that they never wash their boat between
different water courses.
In comparison with the 2014 survey results, there has been a significant increase of almost
20% in respondents that never wash their boat between different water courses, while there
has been a slight increase of 4% that always do so.
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

Total

Percent

Always

87

31.8%

Occasionally

19

6.9%

Rarely

9

3.3%

Never

67

24.5%

Not Answered

92

33.6%

Question 10: What would help you to do this more often?
Respondents who answered other than always to the previous question (Q9) were asked
what would help them to clean their boats more often between different water courses, with
46 doing so. The main points coming from the comments were suggestions to improve the
availability of washing facilities, provision of information or that this wasn’t applicable as their
boat doesn’t leave the lake.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.

Question 11: How would you prefer to pay for your mooring (including dinghy
rack, parking permit and winter storage)?
Unfortunately, the majority of respondents (40.2%) did not provide an answer to this
question. This will be partly due to those who answered the survey but don’t have a boat on
the lake. However, direct debit instalments was the preferable method of payment for the
majority that did provide an answer (28.8% of total responses). By post is the least

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

11

Page 43

APPENDIX 2
preferable method (1.8%).
Direct Debit instalments
By direct bank payment (BACS)
Direct Debit in full
In person at Ferry Nab
By card over the phone
By post
Not Answered
0%

5%

10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45%

Total

Percent

Direct Debit instalments

79

28.8%

By direct bank payment
(BACS)

28

10.2%

Direct Debit in full

21

7.7%

In person at Ferry Nab

20

7.3%

By card over the phone

11

4.0%

By post

5

1.8%

110

40.2%

Not Answered

Question 12: Have you provided an authorised emergency contact with your
mooring application pack, in case the Wardens can’t get hold of you?
Again, the majority of respondents (43.8%) did not provide an answer to this question.
However two in five respondents (39.8%) have provided an authorised emergency contact,
while just 16.4% have not.
Those who answered no were asked to comment, with the majority implicating that this is not
applicable to them.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.
Total

Percent

Yes

109

39.8%

No

45

16.4%

Not Answered

120

43.8%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 44

12

APPENDIX 2

Safety and rescue
Question 13: Do you know who to contact in the event of an emergency on the
lake?
One in five respondents do not know who to contact in the event of an emergency on
the Lake. However the majority (77.7%) do know, with almost all of these saying
either the lake wardens or the coastguard.
Total

Percent

Yes

213

77.7%

No

53

19.3%

Not Answered

8

2.9%

Respondents to the survey were asked to
complete questions 14 to 17 only if they have needed rescue or recovery after
2014. If not they were asked to skip to question 18.
Question 14: Have you contacted any of the following, as a result of an
emergency on the lake?
The overall majority of respondents (85%) have not needed rescue or recovery on the lake
after 2014. Of the 43 that have, 90.7% contacted the Lake Wardens.
Total

Percent

233

85.0%

999
Coastguard

2

4.7%

Lake Wardens

39

90.7%

Lake Rangers

2

4.7%

Not needed assistance

Needed
assistance

Question 15: Has your boat ever broken free from its mooring or required
emergency attention?
Of those that have needed assistance since 2014, a quarter (26.8%) of these respondent’s
boats have broken free from its mooring or required emergency attention. Of these, the
overall majority said that they were provided with enough information for them to decide
what action to take.

Boat broken free
from mooring or
required emergency
attention

Total

Percent

Yes

11

26.8%

No

27

65.9%

Not
Answered

3

7.3%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

13

Page 45

APPENDIX 2
If yes, did we
provide enough
information

Yes

10

90.9%

No

1

9.1%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 46

14

APPENDIX 2
Question 16: How do you rate the rescue and recovery service?
The majority of respondents (78.1%) that have needed assistance since 2014 rate the
rescue or recovery service as excellent, with 14.6% rating it as good. Just one respondent
said that the service was very poor.
There was a similarly positive response to the service in the 2014 survey.

Length of stay

Total

Percent

Excellent

32

78.1%

Good

6

14.6%

Average

1

2.4%

Poor

0

0%

Very poor

1

2.4%

Not Answered

38

13.9%

Question 17: What, if anything, could be better about the rescue and recovery
service we provide?
There were just 13 responses to this question from respondents who have needed
assistance since 2014. As the previous question illustrates, the majority feel that the service
of the lake wardens is already excellent and needs no improvements.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.

Question 18: Are you aware of the following safety campaigns?
Respondents could choose all options that applied. All five safety campaigns had fairly good
levels of awareness. Carbon monoxide safety (61.0%), Swim Safe/Boat Safe (58.8%) and
Kill Cords (58.0%) had slightly higher levels of awareness than the other two.
Swim Safe/Boat Safe
Life Jacket/Buoyancy aid checks
Kill Cords
Carbon Monoxide safety
Swimming tow floats
Not Answered
0%

10%

20%

30%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

40%

50%

60%

70%

15

Page 47

APPENDIX 2

Total

Percent

Safe Swim/Boat Safe

161

58.8%

Life Jacket/Buoyancy aid
checks

149

54.4%

Kill Cords

159

58.0%

Carbon Monoxide safety

167

61.0%

Swimming tow floats

141

51.5%

Not Answered

47

17.2%

Question 19: Where do you access lake safety information?
Respondents could choose all options that applied. Almost half (48.9%) access lake safety
information at the Ferry Nab office, a quarter (25.9%) on the SLDC website and a fifth
(20.8%) on the LDNPA website.
Respondents were also able to comment about other places they access lake safety
information, with 48 doing so. Sailing/boating clubs (SWSC etc.), social media and the
internet were the other popular places to access this type of information.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
Ferry Nab office

SLDC website

Total

Percent

Ferry Nab office

134

48.9%

SLDC website

71

25.9%

LDNPA website

57

20.8%

Not Answered

94

34.3%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 48

LDNPA website

Not Answered

16

APPENDIX 2
Question 20: Please tell us about any safety equipment you have?
Respondents could choose all options that applied and more than four out of five (84.3%)
have life jackets/buoyancy aids. The other two most common types of safety equipment
possessed by respondents are fire blanket/extinguishers (59.1%) and kill cords (54.4%). The
least common was swimming tow floats (21.2%).
Respondents were also given the opportunity to state any other safety equipment they have,
with 27 doing so. The other main ones were throw lines and mobile phones/Vhf radios.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.
Total

Percent

149

54.4%

231

84.3%

114

41.6%

Swimming tow float

58

21.2%

Fire
blanket/extinguisher

162

59.1%

Not Answered

25

9.1%

Kill Cords
Life
Jacket/Buoyancy
aids
Carbon Monoxide
Detector

Kill Cord
Life Jackets/Buoyancy aids
Carbon monoxide detector
Swimming tow float
Fire blanket/extinguisher
Not Answered
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

Registration and enforcement
Question 21: How did you register your vessel for the 2018 season?
Online from an email renewal notice (30.3%) and in person at Ferry Nab (27.0%) were the
most common methods respondents used to register their vessel for the 2018 season. By
phone and post were far less often used.
When comparing results with those from the 2014 survey, it is noticeable that registering by
post is far less common now than it was then (a drop of 15% since 2014).
Total

Percent

By post

19

6.9%

By phone

5

1.8%

83

30.3%

By post
By phone

Online from email
renewal notice
In person at Ferry
Nab
Registration not
applicable
Not Answered

Online from email renewal
notice
In person at Ferry Nab

74

21.0%

50

18.3%

43

15.7%

Registration not applicable
Not Answered
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

17

Page 49

APPENDIX 2
Question 22: Was your application dealt with promptly?
Of those that answered, the vast majority (62.4% of the total, 95% of those that answered)
felt that their application was dealt with promptly.
Total

Percent

Yes

171

62.4%

No

9

3.3%

Not Answered

94

34.3%

Question 23: Are you aware of the Lake byelaws?
Four out five respondents (79.9%) are aware of the Lake byelaws, while just under one in
ten (8.6%) are not.
Compared to the 2014 survey, the proportion of respondents aware of the Lake byelaws has
dropped from 97%.
Total

Percent

Yes

219

79.9%

No

24

8.8%

Not Answered

31

11.3%

Question 24: Do you know how to contact a LDNPA Lake Ranger if you want to
report a byelaw offence?
Half of all respondents (51.5%) know how to contact a LDNPA Lake Ranger, while two fifths
(40.2%) do not know.
Total

Percent

Yes

141

51.5%

No

110

40.2%

Not Answered

23

8.4%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 50

18

APPENDIX 2
Question 25: Have you ever been stopped or warned for any byelaw offence?
12.4% of respondents to the survey have been stopped or warned for a byelaw offence,
while the overall majority (78.8%) have not.
Of those that have been stopped or warned, 82.4% felt the Lake Ranger clearly explained
the offence committed. Half of them (50.0%) received a letter confirming the warning, 47%
did not. The majority (8.2%) that did receive the warning letter felt that it clearly explained the
offence that had been committed.
Similar results were seen in the 2014 survey.

Stopped or warned
for byelaw offence?

If yes, did person
who stopped you
clearly explain
offence committed?

Received a letter
confirming warning?
Warning letter (if
received) clearly
explained offence
that had been
committed?

Total

Percent

Yes

34

12.4%

No

216

78.8%

Not
Answered

24

8.8%

Yes

28

82.4%

No

5

14.7%

Not
Answered

1

2.9%

Yes

17

50.0%

No

16

47.1%

Not
Answered

1

2.9%

Yes

15

88.2%

No

2

11.8%

Not
Answered

0

0%

Question 26: How can we improve our Lake byelaws management service?
There were 102 comments to this question. For analytical purposes the comments have
been grouped into similar themes. Looking through the comments it is clear that there are
two main themes being raised in regards to the Lake byelaws management service.
The main one is in relation to speeding. There were numerous comments indicating that this
is the biggest problem on the Lake when it comes to byelaw management, and that
enforcement of the speed limit needs to be improved. Wakeboarding boats flouting the
speed limit, especially in the evening, was mentioned in a number of comments. On the
other hand, there were also respondents that feel the speed limit should be scrapped, or at
least areas of the Lake where boats can exceed it (which in turn would remedy the problem
of speeding in other parts of the Lake).
The other main theme was the need to improve the publication and education of the Lake
byelaws. Examples of which include; better signage on the Lake, handing out byelaw

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

19

Page 51

APPENDIX 2
leaflets/information with registration documents, more information at slipways and increased
education in using the lake.
Finally, there were also a number of comments stating that byelaw management should be
handed back to the Lake Wardens.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.

Lake news and comments
Question 27: Have you used any of the following to access information, news
and updates about the lake?
The three most popular ways that respondents like to access information, news and updates
about the lake are; the SLDC website (50.4%), Windermere Lake Wardens on Facebook
(36.9%), and the LDNPA website (35.4%). The two Twitter accounts were used by very few
respondents.
Respondents were also able to state other information platforms they use, with 16 doing so.
The Lake Warden’s office and private sailing clubs were other places they accessed lake
information.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.

SLDC Website

Windermere Lake Wardens on Facebook

LDNPA Website

Twitter @lakewardens

Twitter @lakerangers
0%

10%
Yes

20%
No

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90% 100%

Not Answered

Yes

No

Not
Answered

SLDC Website

138

50.4%

76

27.7%

60

21.9%

LDNPA Website

97

35.4%

98

35.8%

79

28.8%

Windermere Lake Wardens on
Facebook

101

36.9%

94

34.3%

79

28.8%

Twitter @lakewardens

14

5.1%

136

49.6%

124

45.3%

Twitter @lakerangers

6

2.2%

142

51.8%

126

46.0%

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 52

Que
stio
n
28:
Do
you
hav
e
any
20

APPENDIX 2
other comments about the service offered at the lake by SLDC or LDNPA?
There were 107 comments to this question. For analytical purposes the comments have
been grouped into similar themes. Looking through the comments it is clear to see there are
three main themes the majority of comments can be grouped under.
Firstly, there were numerous comments commending the work of the Lake Wardens and
Rangers, with many feeling that they perform a good service on the lake and are courteous
and helpful when interacting with them. However there were a few negative comments
regarding the Lake Rangers, mainly around their lack of a presence on the Lake at times.
The facilities at Ferry Nab were another main theme running through the comments, most
notably the issues surrounding the lack of public toilets and the state of the shower/toilet
facilities. Many feel that the public toilets should be reopened to alleviate the burden on the
toilets used by the lake users. There were also issues with the public jetties at Ferry Nab,
with a number of comments highlighting that the fingers are too close together. The state of
other jetties around the Lake was also seen as an issue.
The other main theme was around the speed limit on the lake (as seen in question 26).
Again there were comments from both sides, some feeling that enforcement of the speed
limit needs tightening while others feel it should be abolished. The introduction of ‘speed
zones’ was again recommended by a number of respondents.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.

About you
Question 29: Are you…?
The majority, two thirds of respondents (65%), were male. This was the case in the 2014
survey, however the proportion of female respondents has increase by 25% in this year’s
survey.
Total

Percent

Male

178

65.0%

Female

84

30.7%

Prefer not to
say

10

3.7%

Not Answered

4

1.5%

Question 30: What was your age at your last birthday?
Half of the responses (52.2%) to the survey came from those in the 51-65 year age group,
while in total most respondents were over the age of 36. This was also the case in 2014.

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

21

Page 53

APPENDIX 2

Total

Percent

Under 16

0

0%

16-25

6

2.2%

26-35

9

3.3%

36-50

78

28.5%

51-65

143

52.2%

66-80

32

11.7%

Over 80

1

0.4%

Not Answered

5

1.8%

Question 31: What is your postcode?
The data collected from this question has been used to identify that there was a fairly even
split of responses from lake users from outside the South Lakeland district (53%), and those
more local (within the South Lakeland district (47%).

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Analysis Report

Page 54

22

APPENDIX 3

Lake Windermere Services User Survey 2018
Appendix 3
2014 and 2018 data comparison

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 55

APPENDIX 3

Table of Contents
Comparison of 2014 and 2018 data ................................................................................... 2
Your use of the lake and SLDC facilities ............................................................................ 2
Vessels and moorings ....................................................................................................... 8
Safety and rescue............................................................................................................ 12
Registration and enforcement .......................................................................................... 15
Lake news and comments……………………………………………………………………….16
About you..........…………………………………………………………………………………..17

Comparison of 2014 and 2018 data
The 2018 lake user survey included different questions and in a different numerical order to
the 2014 lake service survey. However, both surveys were intended for the same target
audience of all users on Lake Windermere.
Where results can be compared through the same or similar questions, the results have
been analysed below.

Your use of the Lake and SLDC facilities
Question 1: What are your main activities around the lake?
This was a new question for 2018 to capture as many different lake users as possible.
Boating, sailing, powerboating, jet skiing, kayaking and paddle boarding are the most
popular activities, with 30.3% of respondents doing this at least once a week. Walking got
11.7% responses once a week, followed by swimming at 7.7 % once a week.

Question 2: How often have you used the following facilities over the last
year?

Car park %

Public Jetties %
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

2014

2018

2014

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 56

2018

APPENDIX 3

Public toilets %

Drinking water

40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

60
50
40
30
20
10
0

2014

2018

2014

2018

trailer/dinghy park %
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

2014

2018

Public showers %

Public slipway %

70

45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

60
50
40
30
20
10
0

2014

2014

2018

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 57

2018

APPENDIX 3

toilet pump out %

mast hoist %

60

80
70

50

60
40

50
40

30

30

20

20
10

10

0

0

2014

2014

2018

2018

advice/help/info service %
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0
every day 2-3 times a
week

1 a week 1-2 a month less often
2014

never

not
answered

2018

public washing up area (2018)
%

Short stay public moorings
(2018) %
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 58

APPENDIX 3

Question 3: What has been your experience/how do you rate the facilities
provided?

car park %

advice/help/info service %
60

40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

50
40
30
20
10
0

2014

2018

2014

public jetties %

2018

public slipway %

40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

2014

2018

2014

drinking water %

toilet pump out %

60

60

50

50

40

40

30

30

20

20

10

10

0

0

2014

2018

2018

2014

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 59

2018

APPENDIX 3

mast hoist %

trailer/dinghy park %
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

60
50
40
30
20
10
0

2014

2018

2014

2018

public toilets %
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0
excellent

good

average
2014

poor

very poor

not
answered

2018

public showers %
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
excellent

good

average
2014

poor
2018

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 60

very poor

not
answered

APPENDIX 3

public washing up area (2018)
%

short stay public moorings
(2018) %
50

70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

40
30
20
10
0

winter storage (2014) %
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
excellent

good

average

poor

very poor

not
answered

Question 4: If we install any new public jetties, where would you like
to see them?
This was a new question for the 2018 survey, which received 171
suggestions. The most popular were;

12%
36%

12%

18%

Waterhead

Bowness Bay

Lakeside

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 61

Southern Shore

APPENDIX 3

Question 5: Would you like more short stay public mooring buoys
provided?
Another new question for 2018, the results were as follows;

8.80%
29.90%

50%

11.30%

yes

no

don't know

Vessels and moorings
Question 6: If you use a vessel, what type do you use?

2014
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 62

not answered

APPENDIX 3

2018
45.00%
40.00%
35.00%
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%

Question 7: Do you launch your vessel from a slipway, if so,
where?
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
Ferry Nab

Waterhead

Other
2014

2018

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 63

Not answered

APPENDIX 3

Question 8: Is your vessel kept…?
50
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0
On an SLDC swinging
mooring

On a marina

At home
2014

Not answered/elsewhere

2018

Question 9: Do you wash your boat and equipment between
visiting different water courses?
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
Always

Occasionally

Rarely
2014

Never/Not applicable

Not answered

2018

Question 10: What would help you to do this more often?
This was a new question for 2018 which received 46 comments. The main themes are
grouped in the table below. All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix
1.

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 64

APPENDIX 3

Suggestions on boat washing
30

25

20

15

10

5

0
More/improved facilities needed

Not aware/information needed

Not applicable

Question 11: How would you prefer to pay for your mooring (including dinghy
rack, parking permit and winter storage)?
Preferences for payments
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
Direct debit
installments

Bank transfer - Direct Debit in
BACS
full

In person
2014

2018

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 65

By card over the
phone

By post

Not answered

APPENDIX 3

Question 12: Have you provided an authorised emergency
contact with your mooring application pack, in case the
Wardens can’t get hold of you?
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
Yes

No
2014

Not answered
2018

Safety and rescue
Question 13: Do you know who to contact in the event of an
emergency on the lake? (This is a new question for 2018)

yes

no

not answered

(2014) Question 9: Have you ever
been rescued on the lake?

yes

no

not answered

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 66

APPENDIX 3

Question 14: have you contacted any of the following as a result
of an emergency on the lake? (This is a new question for 2018)

not needed assistance

999/coastguard

lake wardens

lake rangers

Question 15: Has your boat ever broken free from its mooring or
required emergency attention?
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
Yes

No
2014

Not answered
2018

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 67

APPENDIX 3

Question 16: How do you rate the rescue and recovery service?
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
Excellent

Good

Average
2014

Poor

Very poor

Not answered

2018

Question 17: What, if anything, could be better about the rescue and recovery
service we provide?
A new question for 2018, there were just 13 responses to this question from respondents
who have needed assistance since 2014. As the previous question illustrates, the majority
feel that the service of the lake wardens is already excellent and needs no improvements.
All comments to this question can be viewed in full in Appendix 1.

Question 18: Are you aware of the following safety campaigns?
A new question for 2018.
Swim Safe/Boat Safe
Life Jacket/Buoyancy aid checks
Kill Cords
Carbon Monoxide safety
Swimming tow floats
Not Answered
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Question 19: Where do you access lake safety information?
This question was asked differently in 2014 and focused on the usage of SLDC and LDNPA
websites.

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 68

APPENDIX 3

Locations to access lake safety information/ which web site
do you use?
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
Ferry Nab office

SLDC website

LDNPA website

2014

Not answered

2018

Question 20: Please tell us about any safety equipment you have?
Kill Cord
Life Jackets/Buoyancy aids
Carbon monoxide detector
Swimming tow float
Fire blanket/extinguisher
Not Answered
0%

10%

20%

30%

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 69

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

APPENDIX 3

Registration and enforcement
Question 21: How did you register your vessel for the 2018
season?
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0
By post

By phone

Online from email
renewal
2014

In person

Registration n/a

Not answered

2018

Question 23: Are you aware of the Lake byelaws?
120
100
80
60
40
20
0
Yes

No
2014

Not answered

2018

Question 24: Do you know how to contact a LDNPA Lake Ranger if
you want to report a byelaw offence? (new for 2018)

Yes

No

Not answered

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 70

APPENDIX 3

Question 25: Have you ever been stopped or warned for any
byelaw offence?

80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
yes

no
2014

not answered
2018

Question 26: How can we improve our Lake byelaws management service?
There were 102 comments to this section. All comments to this question can be viewed in
full in Appendix 1.

Lake news and comments
Question 27: Have you used any of the following to access
information, news and updates about the lake?
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
SLDC website

LDNPA website

Facebook - lake
wardens
yes

no

twitter@lakewardens twitter@lakerangers

not answered

Question 28: Do you have any other comments about the service offered at the
lake by SLDC or LDNPA?
There were 107 comments to this question. All comments to this question can be viewed in
full in Appendix 1.

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 71

APPENDIX 3

About you
Question 29: Are you…?

not answered

prefer not to say

female

male
0

10

20

30

40
2018

50

60

70

80

90

100

2014

Question 30: What was your age at your last birthday?
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
under 16

16-25

26-35

36-50
2014

51-65

66-80

over 80

not answered

2018

Question 31: What is your postcode?
The data collected from this question has been used to identify that there was a fairly even
split of responses from lake users from outside the South Lakeland district (53%), and those
more local (within the South Lakeland district (47%).

Appendix 2 – 2014/2018 data comparison

Page 72

Current Actions in relation to the Lake Users Survey 2018
Supported by the Windermere Lake Action Plan
QUESTION

Appendix 4

21:
How did you register you vessel for 2018 season?

Action
The answer to both questions 4 and 5 are invaluable information
from the lake users about where they want to see new public
jetties and short stay public moorings. We are using this feedback
to inform the group looking at breakthrough action 4 – Enhance
the boat user experience through improved infrastructure and
information at existing locations.
We are using this feedback from these 2 questions to inform the
group looking at breakthrough action 4 – Enhance the boat user
experience through improved infrastructure and information at
existing locations.
Through the Lake Ranger update 2018 being sent out to all
registered power driven boats in December 2018 we are
reminding lake users if they get into difficulty out on the lake in an
emergency then they need to call 999 and ask for the coastguard.
We will use the responses to these questions to improve current
water safety information. We will be promoting the lake safety
videos on LDNPAs website to all registered power driven boats
through the Windermere Registration renewals that are going out
in early December 2018.
We currently monitor this, and we encourage registrations online
as this is far more efficient than by post, phone or at Ferry Nab.

22:
Was your application dealt with promptly?

We are pleased with the percentage that feel that their application
was dealt with promptly and we hope this will improve each year.

4&5
4: If we install any new public jetties, where would you like to see
them?
5: Would you like more short stay public mooring buoys provided?

Page 73

9 & 10
9. Do you wash your boat and equipment between visiting
different water courses?
10. What would help you do this more often?
13:
Do you know who to contact in the event of an emergency on the
lake?
18 & 19
18: Are you aware of the following safety campaigns?
19: Where do you access lake safety information?

Current Actions in relation to the Lake Users Survey 2018
Supported by the Windermere Lake Action Plan
23:
Are you aware of the Lake Byelaws?

24: Do you know how to contact a LDNPA Lake Ranger if you want
to report a byelaw offence?

Page 74

25: Have you ever been stopped or warned for any byelaw
offence?

26: How can we improve our Lake byelaws management service?

Appendix 4

It’s concerning that compared to the 2014 survey, the proportion
of the respondents aware of the Lake Byelaws has dropped from
97% but there are more people who did not answer this question
which would affect the percentages. We are sending out a copy of
the byelaws to all 3600 registered power driven boats through the
registration renewals in December 2018.
We would want more people to know who how to contact a Lake
Ranger to report byelaw offences. We have now created a page on
our website and is called lake byelaw enforcement.
http://www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/visiting/thingstodo/water/lakebyelaw-enforcement
We know how many lake users the Lake rangers have interacted
with in any given period. The information provided for this
question is useful when comparing to other questions in the
survey.
We are promoting through the Lakes Rangers update 2018 the
number of byelaw offences the Lake Rangers have dealt with in
2018. We are also promoting how lake users can report byelaw
infringements to the Lake Rangers. This will be sent to all
registered power driven boats through the Windermere
Registration renewals that are going out in early December 2018.

Item No.9
South Lakeland District Council
Lake Administration Committee
Friday, 25 January 2019

Windermere Lake Wardens and Rangers Annual
Report 2017/18
Chairman:

Cllr David Williams – Chairman of Lake Administration Committee

Report from:

David Sykes - Director People and Places

Report Authors:

Frankie Flannigan – Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer,
Steve Gaskell – Park Management Leader (LDNPA)

Wards:

Not Applicable

Forward Plan:

Not Applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

Members note the report

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that members note the contents of the report.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Annual report covers our joint
operational activities from 1st October 2017 to 30th September 2018.It is intended to
inform members, stakeholders, lake users and officers of the range of services
delivered and the achievements undertaken, and to provide an illustration of how and
who has used the lake during the period this report covers.

3.2

The report is structured into the topics used in the Lake District National Park
Partnership Plan and Vision for the Lake District; a prosperous economy, world class
visitor experience, vibrant communities and spectacular landscape.

3.3

Members are asked to note the contents of the report which is provided in Appendix
1.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

This Report is co-authored with the Lake District National Park Authority (LDNPA)
who have provided information text and illustrations for the report.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

None.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

This report supports the Council’s vision to make South Lakeland the best place to
live, work and explore.

Page 75

6.2

It is also linked to the following Council plan priorities:Enabling and delivering opportunities for sustainable economic growth;
Protecting and enhancing our environment; and
Improving health and reducing health inequalities.

7.0

Implications
Financial, Resources and Procurement

7.1

None.
Human Resources

7.2

There are no staff implications.
Legal

7.3

There are no legal implications associated with this report.
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental

7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:
Annual Report

7.6

Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: Not applicable
Equality and Diversity

7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:
Annual Report

7.9

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: Not applicable
Risk

Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Failure to monitor lake activities
may result in missed
opportunities and identifying
downward trends

Fail to identify appropriate
actions which may result in
income loss and
operational efficiency

Report annually and
identify risks early to
ensure appropriate actions
are taken

Contact Officers
Report Author – Frankie Flannigan, Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer, Phone
01539796165, f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Annual Report 2017/18

Page 76

Background Documents Available

Name of Background document

Where it is available

None
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
20/12/2018
20/12/2018
20/12/2018
20/12/2018

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
20/12/2018
N/A
20/12/2018
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78

Appendix 1

Windermere
Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
Annual Report

1 October 2017 - 30 September 2018

Page 79

Page 80

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Contents
page

1. Introduction

2

2. The lake wardens and the lake
ranger teams

2

2.1 The lake wardens

2

2.2 The lake rangers

3

3. A prosperous economy

4

3.1 Lake usage

4

3.2 Boat registrations

4

3.3 Moorings

5

3.4 Slipway

6

3.5 Winter storage

7

3.6 Tender storage

7

3.7 Jetty storage

7

4. World class visitor experiences

7

4.1 Promotion of services

7

4.2 Education and formal training
courses

8

4.3 Events on Windermere

10

4.4 Windermere Boat Show

11

5. Vibrant communities

12

5.1 Windermere byelaw exemption
applications

12

5.2 Incidents on the lake

12

5.3 Car ferry incident response

14

5.4 Byelaw incidents

14

6. Spectacular landscape, wildlife and
cultural heritage

15

6.1 Water quality and bathing waters

15

6.2 Geese management

16

page 1

Page 81

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

1. Introduction
Welcome to the annual report of the Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger
Services. This report covers our activities from 1st October 2017 to 30th
September 2018. It is intended to inform partners, stakeholders and those with
responsibility for managing the lake. It also provides an illustration of how and
who has used the lake during the period this report covers.
Information provided in this report reflects the strategies identified in the Lake District
National Park Authority (LDNPA) partnership plan for 2015 to 2020 which is described in
four sections;
•

A prosperous economy

•

World class visitor experiences

•

Vibrant communities

•

Spectacular landscapes, wildlife and cultural heritage

2. The lake wardens and the lake ranger teams
The wardens and rangers have continued to work together successfully from the
joint base at Ferry Nab, which has shared office space. Each team has their own
boats but are trained to use each other’s. First aid kits and defibrillators’ are shared
between the teams along with information to mutually support operational delivery.
Joint team briefings have also been held during the reporting period, to help
support effective communications.

2.1

The lake wardens

South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) provide a lake warden service on the lake which
includes; a patrol and rescue service, manage lake moorings and public jetties, provide
boat winter storage and other customer and boat services at the Ferry Nab office. All
wardens are trained in first aid and provide Royal Yachting Association powerboat training
for other agencies. Water safety training is also provided for schools and other
organizations.

The newly refurbished public jetty at Waterhead

Page 82

page 2

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
The wardens also inspect and maintain eight public jetties around the lake. During this
reporting period, a newly refurbished public jetty was completed at Waterhead. Rock
marker and navigation buoys on the lake are also checked weekly whilst other navigation
aids are provided and maintained by the warden service. Additionally, an important role
is to monitor lake encroachment and dredging applications and provide support to
council’s legal and property services.

2.2

The lake rangers

A team of four lake rangers are deployed to meet the levels of use and activities being
undertaken on the lake. They are well supported by a dedicated team of National Park
Volunteers who assist with the various duties of a Lake Ranger. This includes; advice
provided to the public face to face, meeting people on the lake, assisting with education
on lake safety or as a last resort through enforcement.
Before the start of the season one of our existing lake rangers left the team and we
welcomed back a previously employed lake ranger. With the fabulously dry weather we
received in the early part of the year the lake has been busy. The main focus for the
team this year has been to promote lake safety messages. They are also an essential
presence on the lake to monitor and enforce compliance with lake byelaws.

A lake ranger on patrol on Windermere

page 3

Page 83

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

3. A prosperous economy
The Lake District’s economy is centered on the community it serves and the
spectacular landscapes which have been preserved by land managers. It is also
supported by a strong visitor economy attracted by the environment and lifestyle
it offers. Lake Windermere forms one of these assets and the economic output
from the activities in and around the lake contribute to both the local and visitor
economies.

3.1

Lake usage

Lake usage has been measured using the following sources of data:
•

Boat registrations

•

Moorings

•

Slipway

•

Winter storage

•

Tender storage

3.2

Boat registrations

All power driven vessels used on the Lake Windermere must be registered with LDNPA.
Table 3.2a below shows the total number of registered power driven boats over the past
five years. This shows a slight increase in power driven boats for 2017-18 from the
previous year.
The total number of new registrations has stayed reasonably consistent in the five year
period varying from 3,524 up to 3,754. It also demonstrates in percentage terms the
difference proportionally between new registrations and renewals. These proportions
have stayed within a 3% variance over the five year period.

Table 3.2a - Boat registrations
Power driven boat
registrations

Oct 2017 Sept 2018

Oct 2016 Sept 2017

Oct 2015 Sept 2016

Oct 2014 Sept 2015

Oct 2013 Sept 2014

New registrations

735

772

744

737

769

Renewals

2,852

2,805

2,780

2,927

3,025

Totals

3,578

3,577

3,524

3,614

3,754

Page 84

page 4

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
Graph 3.2b - Boat registrations since 2013-2014

3.3

Moorings

There are now a total of 764 mooring sites on the Lake for which SLDC have planning
consent and are available to lease. The number of sites has reduced over time due to
difficulties of access from some areas of the lake shore. There are 702 mooring sites
leased during the reporting year to date; a 92% occupancy rate. There has been a 2.2%
reduction in mooring usage since the last reporting period.

Table 3.3a - Breakdown of the mooring usage by fee type since October 2013
Oct 2017 - Oct 2016 - Oct 2015 - Oct 2014 - Oct 2013 Sept 2018 Sept 2017 Sept 2016 Sept 2015 Sept 2014

Fee
type

Description

A

Open deck
yacht

34

34

32

32

32

B

Retained
moorings - no
boat attached

52

49

50

51

56

C

Craft - up to
11m

562

581

576

578

602

D

Commercial
mooring

6

6

19

20

22

E

No fee - unused

46

46

49

49

50

S

Service
moorings

2

2

7

7

7

702

718

733

736

767

Totals

page 5

Page 85

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

3.4

Slipway

There was a 14% increase from last year on slipway usage during the reporting period,
with 950 vessels using the slipway. This does not include use of the slipway by permanent
mooring and berth holders as they receive free use of the slipway. Non-powered vessels
such as canoes and dinghies also receive free use of the slipway and are not included in
the figures as there is no accountable transaction.

Table 3.4a - Slipway usage since October 2013
Slipway usage

Craft numbers

1 October 2017 to 30 September 2018

950

1 October 2016 to 30 September 2017

815

1 October 2015 to 30 September 2016

859

1 October 2014 to 30 September 2015

691

1 October 2013 to 30 September 2014

822

Graph 3.4b - Slipway usage since 2013-2014

3.5

Winter storage

There is capacity for 155 boats from 5m to 11.5m to be stored at Ferry Nab over winter.
During the winter of 2017/18 152 boats were stored in three locations; main car park,
overspill car park and Braithwaite fold overspill. Boats are stored from mid-October until
the end of March.

3.6

Tender storage

Currently there are 198 tenders being stored at Ferry Nab; 154 in the dinghy racks, 38
in the trailer park and 6 on jetty berths. There are 17 customers on the waiting list, with
the potential for the capacity to be expanded to an extra 12 during 2019. Funding has
been secured for this project and its progress of this will be reported in next year’s
annual report.

Page 86

page 6

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
3.7

Jetty storage

There are 26 jetty berths at Ferry Nab marina, with 10 suitable for vessels up to 14 metres
in length overall. The rest are suitable for vessels up to 13 metres in length. At the end of
this reporting period 3 jetty berths were vacant and available to lease.

4. World class visitor experiences
A world class visitor experience provides high quality and unique experiences for
visitors within a stunning and globally significant World Heritage Site.
We strive to extend the international appeal and quality of Lake Windermere as a
visitor destination by supporting a range of events at Ferry Nab and around the
lake.
We also aim to provide education and training to local and regional organizations.
The warden and ranger services also strive to provide support to other agencies
and build on strong partnerships.

4.1

Promotion of services

The customer information screen has been a useful source of public information since
installation in the reception area of Ferry Nab offices. Updated information from SLDC
and LDNPA regarding lake services and safety are included, along with information on
invasive species from the Environment Agency.
Safety information is also available on the Lake District National Park website and in free
leaflets and posters at Ferry Nab. There are four water safety videos online which
promote carbon detectors, kill cords, life jackets and swimming visibility devices. Both
services use social media to promote safety and business messages to customers.
The Windermere Lake User guide has continued to be printed for the 2018 season and
electronic copies are available on the LDNPA website. Paper copies of the guide were
distributed to key public information sites around the lake. These guides show where
users can access the lake and promote important safety messages.
Windermere Lake Byelaw booklets are available for lake users at Ferry Nab and on the
LDNPA website. Laminated chart maps can also be purchased which provide
information about the lake, including the location of public jetties. 123 chart maps were
sold during the reporting period.
The service provided by both teams and facilities available at Ferry Nab were the subject
of the Lake User Survey 2018, which is conducted every 4 years and received 274
responses.

page 7

Page 87

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
4.2

Education and formal training courses

Ferry Nab continues to hold the status as a Royal Yachting Association (RYA) training
centre, providing certified courses to official bodies and other authorities. During the 2017
to 2018 season the lake wardens and lake rangers delivered a range of formal courses
in the following areas of expertise;
•

Royal Yachting Association National Powerboat Certificate Level 2 training
Was provided to Windermere Lake Cruises, Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service, and
local boat owners.

•

Boat maintenance training
SLDC staff members underwent training for the maintenance and upkeep of the
jet drive gear box, enabling in-house maintenance to be carried out.

•

National Park volunteers training
At the start of each session LDNPA volunteers undergo refresher training which
includes boat handling and scenario training. Also health and safety and
enforcement training.

•

Schools and groups visits
This year the lake wardens have completed water safety talks to 441 children
across the district. Each year, lake wardens visit local schools and welcome
children from across the district to Ferry Nab. Children enjoy practical throw line
exercises and a talk on all aspects of water safety.
We also welcomed the Cumbria Mini Police for the first time this year. The mini
police are supported by Cumbria’s Police and Crime Commissioner and Cumbria
Constabulary. The initiative started in May 2018, with Ferry Nab selected as the
location for their first lessons on water safety. The children enjoyed their day and
were able to understand how to use safety equipment such as throw bags.

Cumbria Mini Police’s squad
car on the slipway

A warden demonstrating how to
use a throw bag

Page 88

page 8

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
•

Cruise with a ranger experiences
There were six ‘Cruise with a Ranger’ experiences over the summer. These are
where LDNPA rangers give talks to passengers on Windermere Lake Cruises
tours. The fun, interactive talk involves information about the work of the National
Park on and around Windermere, the history of the lake and any other points of
interest on the four journeys that can be made on the lake.

•

Water safety initiatives
A range of events and activities take place on Windermere to promote water
safety. These include initiatives with the Swim Safe Campaign and we have
supported many activities with the RNLI. The lake rangers and volunteers
continue to work closely with the RNLI in order to deliver life jacket check clinics.
The lake rangers have continued to promote 4 lake safety videos on the dangers
of carbon monoxide poisoning, the use of kill cords, visibility devices for
swimmers and life jacket checks. Carbon monoxide safety has also been
reinforced by the wardens and the rangers giving out the appropriate advice and
selling carbon monoxide detectors at Ferry Nab.

•

Search and rescue training
Following the car ferry fire in May 2018, the wardens and rangers supported a
training day with Ulverston inshore rescue and the coastguard service.
Emergency response training involved search pattern exercises and man
overboard scenarios to develop real time rescue strategies.

Ulverston Inshore volunteer training session on Windermere

page 9

Page 89

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
4.3

Events on Windermere

Lake Windermere hosts a wide range of events with varied organizations. The following
vents this year were supported by the wardens and rangers providing safety support;
•

Great North Swim; with approximately 10,000 participants. This year’s
successful event took place at LDNPA’s activity centre at Brockhole, but was
overseen by both the Rangers and Wardens to ensure participant safety.

Participants line up at the Great North Swim 2018

•

The Boat Parade 2018; organized by The Lake District Boat Club, with 12 boats
taking part

Lake Rangers supervising the boat parade

page 13

Page 90

Page 91

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

•

Windermere Motor Boat Racing Club; three motor boat race afternoons were
undertaken through the year. These events were monitored by the lake rangers.
All these race events were approved by the LNDPA as they require a byelaw
exemption to take place.

•

Swim Safe; with 1600 participants. This initiative is hosted by SLDC’s leisure
partner Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) at the Millerground bathing site. It saw
increased interest in practical water safety courses for swimming in the lake
especially from children and young people.

•

Winter Series Sail Racing organised by Windermere Cruising Association with
16 races between November 2017 and March 2018.

•

Regular one-off charity and local events.

4.4

Windermere Boat Show

On Friday 18th to Sunday 20th May the third Windermere Boat Show was held at Ferry
Nab. It is a free event which attracted around 5,000 participants from across the North
West. Forty five businesses exhibited over the weekend and ranged from Windermere
companies, Cumbrian food producers, small local businesses and boat manufacturers
from across the UK and Europe.
It was also supported by Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) SLDC’s Leisure partner,
along with other local leisure companies. The sunny weather all weekend meant that
the group paddleboard experience was particularly popular, along with chances to try
innovative crafts such as a pedal boat and an origami kayak.
The increase in popularity year on year demonstrates the boat show’s contribution to
the local economy and supports the growth of local businesses.
The Lake Wardens continued to operate the slipway with supervised launches. SLDC
hosted the boat show at Ferry Nab with the full use of the marina, jetties and part of
the car park used by the diverse range of exhibitors.
Water safety remained an important theme of the show with public information
provided by SLDC, the LDNPA with life jacket and buoyancy aid checks and the
RNLI’s information stand. The Lake User Survey was launched at the event, with
active promotion at Ferry Nab offices and within the show’s publicity.

Page 92

page 12

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
Ferry Nab during the Windermere Boat Show

page 13

Page 93

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

5. Vibrant communities
Vibrant communities are people successfully living, working and relaxing within
upland, valley and lakeside places where distinctive local character is maintained
and celebrated.
Both services work closely with the lake community to ensure that the lake is as
safe and as welcoming as possible for all users. This includes:

•

Administration of Windermere Byelaw exemptions

•

Educational activities on water safety

•

Lake ranger and lake wardens active presence on the lake

•

Providing support, advice and guidance for outdoor recreational events

5.2

Windermere byelaw exemption applications

Within the 2008 Windermere Navigation byelaws, byelaw 12 allows individuals and
organizations to apply to the LDNPA for exemptions from the speed limits and other
byelaws. One exemption application from Windermere Motor Boat Racing Club (WMBRC)
had already received approval for two race events in 2018.
In this reporting period we received another Windermere byelaw exemption application
from the WMBRC for additional race events in 2018, which were approved with
conditions. All three race events during the 2018 season went ahead as planned and
were closely monitored by the lake rangers.

5.3

Incidents on the lake

The Wardens have attended 199 incidents during the reporting period, supported by the
lake rangers in some cases. What is classed as an incident on the lake covers a very
diverse range of occurrences, from rescue situations to a boater who has run out of fuel.
Most common incidents are observed during routine boat patrols where remedial action
is taken; the relevant person or organization is notified of any action taken or issues which
need attention.
On the next page shows a table categorizing the incidents by type.

Page 94

page 14

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
Table 5.2a
Incident Analysis recorded by the Lake Wardens for October 2017- September 2018;
Sports
boats

Yachts

Motor
cruisers

Jet skis

Canoes/
row boat

Other

Personal injury / illness

0

0

2

0

1

2

Persons fallen overboard

0

0

1

0

1

0

Persons capsized

0

3

0

1

4

0

Persons jumped in /
swimming

0

0

1

0

1

2

Boat sinking / sunk

2

3

3

0

0

0

Collisions

0

0

2

0

0

0

Adrift / ashore

20

46

19

0

5

2

Damage to boat /
property

0

5

0

0

1

0

Problem with mooring /
strops

0

29

4

0

0

1

Broken down not adrift

6

3

2

0

1

0

A) behavior complaints

1

0

0

0

1

0

B) crime/theft complaints

0

1

0

0

0

0

C) other complaints

0

2

3

0

1

0

Fire

1

2

0

0

0

1

Missing persons

0

0

0

0

2

0

Other hazards

1

4

3

0

1

2

Totals

31

98

40

1

19

10

Complaints:

page 15

Page 95

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
5.4

Car ferry incident response

In May 2018 the Windermere Car and Passenger Ferry suffered an engine malfunction
which caught fire in transit. The immediate response by the Wardens and Rangers,
supported by Windermere Lake Cruises resulted in the prompt evacuation of 85
passengers and ferry personnel in a safe and well controlled manner. The incident was
also attended by Cumbria Fire Service, HM coastguard, Cumbria Police and Ulverston
inshore rescue. There were no casualties; passengers and crew were safely returned to
the shore.

Ferry fire evacuation

5.5

Byelaw incidents

The lake rangers have worked hard this year to educate people on how to enjoy the lake
safely. Whilst on patrol Rangers have interacted with 470 lake users, either giving out
advice or enforcing the byelaws. They have also given out 176 warnings for navigation
offences, which compares to 136 navigation offences for the same period last year. The
increase is mainly due to the drier and warmer start to the year when we saw more lake
users on the lake.
The lake rangers issued 254 warnings for registration offences which compares to 176
offences for the same period last year.
29 byelaw incidents were reported to court this year; 15 of these cases have been
successfully prosecuted through the courts with fines given and a further 14 cases are
proceeding through the court system.
One of the navigation offences successfully prosecuted through the courts used video
evidence provided by a member of the public from their phone. Through the boat
registration renewals for 2019, we are providing details on how to report byelaw
infringements to the lake rangers. Sometimes the information supplied to the lake rangers
on byelaw infringements is limited so we are keen to let lake users know what information
we require. We have provided details on how to report byelaw infringements on our
website here;
www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/visiting/thingstodo/water/lake-byelaw-enforcement

Page 96

page 16

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

A lake ranger on patrol

6. Spectacular landscape, wildlife and cultural heritage
Lake Windermere sits within a unique landscape which is universally valued. It is
located within an internationally recognized National Park and World Heritage Site
in which natural and cultural resources are assets to be managed and used wisely
for future generations.
The wardens and rangers aim to assist with improving the natural environment in
and around the lake to ensure a healthy, diverse and high quality biodiversity on
land and on water. Water quality and habitat management schemes are in operation
throughout different points of the year.

6.1

Water quality and bathing waters

The lake wardens have supported the Environment Agency with water testing and blue
green algae surveys across different areas of the Lake. In November 2018, DEFRA
reported the bathing water classifications at Fellfoot, YMCA, Millerground and Rayrigg
Meadow as ‘excellent,’ for the fifth consecutive year. The lake wardens are responsible
for maintaining signage displaying this information at each bathing site around
Windermere.

page 17

Page 97

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services
Table 6.1a - Cumbria bathing waters classification table
Bathing water

Year

Classification

Year

Classification

Haverigg

2018

Poor

2017

Sufficient

Silecroft

2018

Good

2017

Good

Seascale

2018

Sufficient

2017

Sufficient

St Bees

2018

Good

2017

Sufficient

Allonby South

2018

Good

2017

Sufficient

Allonby

2018

Sufficient

2017

Sufficient

Biggar Bank

2018

Excellent

2017

Excellent

Sandy Gap

2018

Good

2017

Good

West Shore

2018

Excellent

2017

Excellent

Windermere, Lakeside YMCA

2018

Excellent

2017

Excellent

Windermere, Millerground Landing

2018

Excellent

2017

Excellent

Windermere, Rayrigg Meadow

2018

Excellent

2017

Excellent

Windermere, Fellfoot

2018

Excellent

2017

Excellent

6.2

Geese management

The lake rangers and SLDC have supported the work of the Windermere Geese
Management Group with non-lethal management techniques to control the numbers of
Canada Geese on Windermere. This work involved Canada Geese egg oiling on the
islands. The group met to review data collected to date and updated the action plan. The
group will be meeting again in January 2019.

Page 98

page 18

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

page 19

Page 99

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

Page 100

page 20

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services

page 21

Page 101

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102

Item No.10

South Lakeland District Council
Lake Administration Committee
Friday, 25 January 2019

Encroachment Application to install a new wooden
Jetty at Winsterlea Ghyll Head Windermere
Portfolio:

Not Applicable

Report from:

Director People and Places

Report Author:

Frankie Flannigan – Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer

Wards:

Bowness&Levens

Forward Plan:

Not Applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

That approval be given to an application for permission to install a new traditional
jetty at Winsterlea.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that approval be given to the application subject to the
applicant agreeing to an encroachment agreement with the Council.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

An application has been received to install a new jetty in a location not previously
used at Winsterlea Windermere. Winsterlea is a private residence and sits on the
Eastern shore of Windermere Lake North of Ghyll Head Activity Centre.

3.2

The application provides details of the construction of the new jetty to be a traditional
construction with timber piles measuring 22.5m2. These measurements are subject
to a survey following completion.

3.3

The applicant has provided confirmation of the approved planning consent by The
Lake District National Park Authority and a copy is attached. Environment Agency
approval has also been received.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Informal consultation has taken place with the Lake Wardens. The Principal Lake and
Parking Services Officer is also in possession of all relevant consents, risk
assessments, method statements and plans. Please see appendices.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

The committee could decide to refuse the application however this action is not
recommended. There are no boundary issues with the location. The Principal Lake

Page 103

and Parking Services Officer has visited the site and is content with the location and
the jetty length.
6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Not Applicable

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

A new encroachment agreement will be required as the proposed jetty will generate
new rental income.

Human Resources
7.2

There are no staff implications

Legal
7.3

A new encroachment agreement will be required following confirmation of agreed
terms by the council’s property agents Lambert Smith Hampton (LSH).

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: A
sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out as this is an individual
application which has already been granted planning permission and Environment
agency consent.

7.6

Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: Not Applicable

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: No
equality or diversity implications arise out of this proposal.

7.9

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: Not Applicable

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

The Committee refuse the
application

It is likely that will be
challenged by the
applicant

Approve the construction
of the jetty as detailed.
The Principal Lake and
Parking Services Officer
and Lake Wardens are
both content with the
application submitted.

Contact Officers
Report Author - – Frankie Flannigan, Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer, Phone
01539796165, f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

Page 104

Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Planning notice decision

2

Notification of Environment Agency consent

3

Application for encroachment

4

Construction method statement

5

Risk assessment

6

Location plan

7

Proposed layout plan

8

Location image

Background Documents Available

Name of Background document

Where it is available

Not Applicable
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
28/11/18
29/11/18
29/11/18

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
29/11/18
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106

Appendix One

7/2018/5317
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
NOTICE OF GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION

To:

Lake District
National Park

Mr Tony Hills
Damson Consultancy Limited
Pells Yeat Farm Studio
Hophouse Lane
Kirkby Lonsdale
LA6 2EH

PART 1 - PARTICULARS OF APPLICATION
1

Name and address of applicant

Andrew and Joanne Parr - Winster Lea,
Ghyll Head, Bowness-on-Windermere,
Windermere, LA23 3LN

2

Date of application

6 June 2018

3

Land to be developed

Land near to Winster Lea, Ghyll Head,
Bowness-on-Windermere, Windermere,
LA23 3LN

4

Development forming the
subject of the application

Construction of new timber jetty and
summerhouse

PART 2- PARTICULARS OF DECISION
IN PURSUANCE of their powers under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
the Lake District National Park Authority as local planning authority HEREBY GIVE
NOTICE THAT PLANNING PERMISSION for the development referred to in Part
1 hereof HAS BEEN GRANTED.
SAVE as hereunder specified the development shall be carried out and completed
in entire accordance with the particulars specified in the application and plans
submitted. The development shall be subject to the following conditions:
1

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the
expiration of THREE years from the date hereof.
REASON:
Imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990.

2

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than
in conformity with the following submitted plans and details:
- Drawing nos. 18007 P101 and 18007 P102 received by the Local
Planning Authority on 18 May 2018.
- Design Statement received by the Local Planning Authority on 18 May

Page 107

7/2018/5317

Page 2 of 3

2018.
- Construction Method Statement received by the Local Planning Authority
on 18 May 2018.
REASON:
3

For the avoidance of doubt.

The works hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
recomendations contained within the submitted Pre-development
Arboricultural Report (ref: AH/AIA/140518) received by the Local Planning
Authority on the 18 May 2018.
REASON:
To safeguard the trees which contribute to the character of
this woodland area in accordance with the requirements of Saved Policy
NE12 of the Lake District National Park Local Plan.

4

The summerhouse hereby approved shall not be used to provide
overnight accommodation.
REASON:
Permission has been granted on the basis that the
summerhouse is connected with the recreational use of the lake in
accordance with Lake District National Park Core Strategy Policy CS28.
The use of the summerhouse for overnight accommodation would not be
in accordance with Policy CS28.

Date: 31 July 2018
MURLEY MOSS, KENDAL

Director of Sustainable Development

Notes and lnformatives
National Planning Policy Framework Statement:
In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework we
have worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner and sought
solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing with this application. We have
done so by publicising the application and consulting with the local Parish
Council.

INFORMATIVE:
Lake Windermere/River Leven is designated as a 'main river'. Therefore, under
the terms of the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016
and the flood risk activities set out in Paragraph 3 Part 1 of Schedule 25, the prior
written consent of the Environment Agency may be required for any works in,
over, under or within 8m of the 'main river', or 16m if tidal, or within 8m of a flood
defence structure/culvert, 16m if tidal.

Page 108

Appendix Two

Environment
Agency

creating a better place
for people and wildlife

Mr Tony Hills
Damson Consultancy Limited
Pells Yeat Farm Studio
Hophouse Lane
Kirkby Lonsdale
Cumbria
LA6 2EH

Our ref: EPRNB3153UG
Date: 7 November 2018

Dear Mr Hills
Your new environmental permit
Permit reference: EPRNB3153UG
Operator: Mr Andrew Parr
Description of Activity: New Jetty North of Ghyll Head Activity Centre
Site / Location : Construction of new timber jetty on Lake Windermere to the north of
Ghyll Head Activity Centre on the Lake shore below Winsterlea, Ghyll Head, Eastings
339094 Northings 492769, LA23 3LN
Our determination of your application for a permit is complete. We're satisfied that you can
carry out your activities in accordance with the enclosed permit, without increasing flood risk,
or harming land drainage or the environment. Please keep the permit in a safe place.
This letter contains web links to other documents. If you aren't able to access these phone
me on 0208 474 8544 or email CMBLNC-PSO@environment-agency.gov.uk. Please quote
our reference if you contact us.
Please look at the table below and note any of the things that apply to your permit.
If...

-

-

-

then..

-

r

-

-

-

you plan to keep your records at a site
other than where the activity takes place

iyou need to let us know within 20 working days of
receiving this letter.

your permit includes standard rules

we've enclosed the rules seUs. We may change
these in future but will let you know about any
changes. You must make sure you're always
, following the latest rules set.

your permit has a pre-operational
condition requiring you to do something
before work starts (for example submit a
method of work, or have measures in
place to reduce sediment mobilisation)

check the deadlines for completing these
measures and make sure you carry them out by
the times stated.

your permit requires you to notify us
before works start

check the deadlines for notifying us and make
sure you carry them out by the times stated.

your permit requires you to notify us when
any particular work is complete

check the deadlines for notifying us and make
sure you carry them out by the times stated.

you need to submit other returns or
information

send these to us at the contact details above,
unless we advise you otherwise.

Ghyll Mount, Gillian Way, Penrith 40 Business Park, Penrith CA11 9BP Customer
services line: 03708 506 506 Email: enquiries@envrionment-agency.gov.uk
www.environment-agency.gov.uk

Page 109

Appendix Three

South Lakeland District Council

Lake Wardens Office
Ferry Nab
Bowness-on-Windermere
Cumbria LA23 3JH
Tel:
Fax:

015394 42753
015394 47813

e-mail: lake.wardens@southlakeland.gov.uk
APPLICATION FOR AN ENCROACHMENT ON THE BED OF WINDERMERE .
Encroachment No.- -

E22.. . .. . .. . .. . .

Name of Applicant Andrew Parr

Address

Winsterlea, Ghyll Head Road,
Bowness-on-Windermere LA23 3LN

I

Telephone No.. ......
Name of Agent...
Telephone No
Name of Contractor

Tony Hills Damson Consultancy Ltd
Jetties & Moorings Ltd

Telephone No

1)..... ......... ... ........ ........ ....... . .. ... .. .. . ..... .... .. . .. . . .. ........ ... ... ..... .. .... . ... .... .. . .. .. .. ........... .
2). ... . . ...... . . . ..... . .. . .. ... .. .... ....... . ... .... . ....... .... ... ... ... .. ........ .. . ..... .. ... . .. .. ... .... . ........ .. .. . . ..
·························· ·············· ······ ·········· ··· ······ ··· ······ ·········· ························· ·········· ·······

All Applications Must include certified copies of plans and
permissions granted by the Lake District National Park
Authority,(Planning Consent) and The Environment Agency, together
with the fee of £214.32p inc.vat.

Signed...

Date - 19 11 18

Page 110

Appendix Four

Jetties & Moorings Ltd
WINSTERLEE JETTY, Bowness-on-Windermere New Timber Jetty

Construction Method Statement

1 The nature of the proposed works is to constyruct a new timber jetty adjacent to the existing
2 Jetty dimensions will be 15m x 1.15m with a landing stage at the small beach.
3 No bank modifications will be made
4 No temporary works will be installed
5 All fuel will be stored in the vehicles and brought to site as required. An oil spill kit will be available during the operation on
site. Jetties & Moorings carry on board oil mats and a floa oil absorbent boom on the barge. Telephone numbers for the
Lake Wardens and
the Environment Agency are available should an emergency arise.
6 All timber will be ACQ treated and have been weathered for a min. of 1 month
prior to use. (Timber treatment profile enc.) Exposed timber should not need treatment however should this be
required all treatment will be caried out away from the water area. Any spillage will be cleaned and the area treated
as required .
7 Any timber cut over the water will be caught in a net and bagged

ready for removal.

8 All building materials will be stored on the work barge or on the owners land.

Page 111

Appendix Five

21st November 2018
SAFE SYSTEM OF WORK - RAMS

Project

New Jetty

Site

Winsterlea, Windermere

Prepared by

Bill Slater, Jetties & Moorings Ltd.

Risk Assesment

yes

Method Statement

yes

Technical Review

No

Personal Protection Equipment Supplied

Hi-Viz Jacket & Vest

yes

Life Jacket
Saftey Harness

yes
yes

Floatation Harness

yes

Steel toe capped Boots/ Wellingtons

yes

Hard hat
Saftey Glasses

yes
yes

Ear Defenders

yes

Knee Pads

yes

Waterproof Gloves

yes

Dust masks

yes

Precautions Required

Toolbox talk

Work in hand

yes

Tool maintenance

yes
yes

Infectious diseases
Management

Bill Slater
Mike Proctor

Project Manager
Site Superviser

Method Statement

Remove old timber into skips
Using barge and pile driver, pile as required
add sub-structure and decking
Start date not known
Hours 8.00 a.m. to 5.00 a.m.
Permits and Permissions

Page 112

Planning Permission

L.D.N.P.A .

Damson Design
Damson Design

Environment Agency

Damson Design

S.L.D.C. (BED OF THE LAKE)
Electrical Work

No

Overhead lines

No

Confined Spaces

No

Resources

Project Manager

yes

Site Supervisor

yes

Skilled Operatives

yes

Plant and Equipment

Generator

yes

8T Excavator

yes

110v Hand Tools

yes

Barge

yes

Skip

yes

Winch

yes

Sequence of Works
General

Site specific induction identifying andy site specific hazards
Principal Designer to review RAMS/ amend if required and sign off
Welfare and parking available
Pre-commencement

Operatives to received daily brief/ de-brief
Working area to be secured to prevent unauthorised access
Dredging and Grading

Operatives to wear life jackets or floatation harness at all times
Barge, excavator and skip will arrive on site prior to silt curtain installation
All plant to contain bio-degradable oil
Should a spillage occur, oil mats and bunding to be used immediately
Clothing, pland and equipment to comply with the check, clean and dry method to control
the spred of invasive species
Weather and lake conditions to be monitored. Operatives to monitor Environment Agency
flood alterts and take appropriate action
Lake bed to be graded and depths agreed with Main Contractor. Excavated materials to be
deposited on land (inside the silt curtain) and allowed to drain for a minimum of 2 days
Excav ated material to be removed by Main Contractor
Floating debris to be bagged and skipped
At close of work, the barge is to be moored on site
Operatives are to maintain good hygiene

by susing on site welfare facilities. Avoid manual

handling of excavated materials to avoid risk of Weils disease
Nearest Hospital
Furness General, Dalton Lane, Barrow in Furness. LA14 4LF Tel. 01229 870870
Emergency Services 999

Page 113

Risk Assessment Work Sheet
Compiled by Bill Slater
Site establishment and familiarisation of works

Site induction required at each site to be worked on. Site specific resks to be identified during induction. Review RAMS and amend
accordingly.
Working over water Risk of drowning

Life jackets or floatation harness to be worn at all times. Competent operatives with a min.
of 2 persons. Mobile phone to be kept in a waterproof container
Manual Handling
Lifting something that is beyond the lifters capacity or lifting in an awkward manner Mechanical lifting will be provided where

possible. Operatives to be given instuction on lifting via tool box talk. Supervisor to monitor expected lifts and devise a safe
system, if not already in place
Vehicles and driving on site
Moving machinery, vehicles and pedestrians also other site contractors

Adhere to site speed limit. Drive only on designated roads. Plant to be restricted to designated routes only
Noise
Risk of deafness

Ear defenders to be worn in areas which have been advised or identified as having a decibel noise level capable of causing damage
to the hearing
Dust
Risk of respiratory problems

Dust masks to be worn if areas which have been advised or identified as having a dust level capable of causing damage to the
respiratory system
Water-born bacteria, virus, fungi infection and leptospirosis Risk of serious illness

Waterproof gloves to be worn, antibacterial hand wash and wipes to be available
Hand and Arm Vibration
Operatives using vibrating plant and portable power tools

Rotate usage of plant and equipment to reduce exposure to individual Report any concerns to the site supervisor before, during or
after use Plant and Hand Tools
Risk of Injury

Only trained and competent person can use operating plant on site. Excavator to be securely chained when unattended.

Page 114

Page 115

Page 116

Appendix Eight

Page 117

Page 118

Item No.11
South Lakeland District Council
Lake Administration Committee
Friday, 25 January 2019

Encroachment Application to replace an existing
boat house with a new boat house and jetty at
Hill of Oaks Windermere
Portfolio:

Not Applicable

Report from:

Director People and Places

Report Author:

Frankie Flannigan – Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer

Wards:

Bowness & Levens;

Forward Plan:

Not Applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

That approval be given to an application for permission to replace the existing
boathouse and jetty at Hill of Oaks Blakeholme Caravan Park.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the committee:2.1.1 Delegate the authority to the Director (People and Places) to grant
permission, subject to the completion of a revised commercial encroachment
agreement, for the following:a. Replacement of the boathouse and wet dock.
b. Replacement of the wooden jetty
c. Installation of a glazed balustrade balcony
d. undertake dredging.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Hill of Oaks is located on the Eastern shore which caters for touring caravan’s motor
homes and holiday home owners. There are also self-catering apartments and
glamping pods.

3.2

During Storm Desmond the boathouse was badly damaged and was removed on
health and safety grounds .The concrete blockwork foundation walls are all that
remains of the structure. The boathouse and wet dock will consist of a concrete wet
dock with a steel portal and timber frame.

3.3

The application provides details of the proposed boat house and wet dock this would
cover an area of 82.3m2 within the Councils registered title. The proposed wooden
jetty would cover an area 22.8m2 within the registered title. The glazed balustrade
balcony would cover an area of 14.8m2. These measurement are approximate and
will be confirmed once a survey is carried out on completion.

Page 119

3.4

An application for dredging has also been received which will require an area of
340m2 to a depth of 34.7 AOD (Above Ordnance Datum). A temporary cofferdam
will be installed to ensure compliancy with the Environment Agency’s instructions.

3.5

The applicant has provided confirmation of the approved planning consents by the
Lake District National Park Authority and a copy is attached for reference.
Environmental Agency approval has also been received.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Informal consultation has taken place with the Lake Wardens. The Principal Lake and
Parking Services Officer is also in possession of all relevant permissions, risk
assessments, method statements and plans.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

The Committee could decide to refuse the application, however this action is not
recommended as there are no boundary disputes at the site, planning permission
has been granted by the LDNPA and Environment Agency License has been issued.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Not Applicable

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

An amendment to the existing commercial encroachment agreement will be required
as the proposed construction will increase the extent of the licensed demise and
increased rental will be achieved.

Human Resources
7.2

There are no staffing implications.

Legal
7.3

Legal Services will be required to complete the encroachment agreement following
confirmation of the agreed terms by LSH.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

This is an individual application which has already been granted planning permission
and Environment Agency Consent.

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

This is an individual application which has already been granted planning permission
and Environment Agency Consent. No equality or diversity implications arise out of
this proposal.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

That the committee refuse the
application

It is likely this would be
challenged by the

Approve the construction
of the works detailed by
the Principal Lake and

Page 120

Risk

Consequence

Controls required

applicant

Parking Services Officer
who is satisfied with the
application that has been
submitted

Contact Officers
Report Author- Frankie Flannigan, Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer, Phone
01539 796165, f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
(delete if no appendices attached)
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Planning decision notice

2

Amendment to planning consent

3

Environment Agency works permit

4

Application for encroachment

5

Application for dredging

6

Heritage design and access statement

7

Location plan

8

Proposed site plan

9

proposed plans and elevations

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

N/A

N/A

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
28/12/2018
28/12/2018
28/12/2018
N/A

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)

Date sent
28/12/2018
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 121

Circulated to
Council

Date sent
N/A

Page 122

Appendix 1

Page 123

Page 124

Appendix 2

Page 125

Page 126

Appendix 3

Page 127

Page 128

Page 129

Page 130

Page 131

Page 132

Page 133

Page 134

Appendix 4

Page 135

Appendix 5

Page 136

Page 137

Appendix 6

Page 138

Page 139

Page 140

Page 141

Page 142

Page 143

Appendix 7

Page 144

Appendix 8

Page 145

Appendix 9

Page 146

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 147

Item No.13

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3,5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 153

This page is intentionally left blank

